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REPORT OF THE DIRECTQORS

The directors of Tai Sang Bartk Limited (the 'Bank’) submit their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2017,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Bank are commercial banking and related financial services and property investment and management. The
principal activities of the Bank’s subsidiaries are shown in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Bank and its subsidiaries {collectively the ‘Group’} for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on page 7.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

PDONATIONS
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$Nil (2016: HK$101,000).

SHARE ISSUED IN THE YEAR
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Bank has not issued any new shares. Details of the share capital are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Bank has not entered into any equity-linked agreement,
DIRECTORS

(a) Directors of the Bank
The directors of the Bank during the vear and up to the date of this report are :

Mr William Ma Ching Wai {Chairman} Mr Ma Ching Tsun Mr Ma Ching Yuk, SBS, IP
Mr Alfred Ma Ching Kuen Mr Patrick Ma Ching Hang, BBS, 1P Mr Philip Ma Ching Yeung
Mr Ma Ching Nam, OStJ, JP Mr Ma Ching Lam Ms Katy Ma Ching Man (Altemate director

to Mr. Alfred Ma Ching Kuen)
Ms Amy Ma Ching Sau (Alternate director Mr Ma Ching Cheng (Alternate director Mr Cheung Wing Yui, BBS *

to Mr. Philip Ma Ching Yeung) to Mr, Ma Ching Nam) (Resigned on 1 December 2017)
Mr Martin Lai Kwai Poi* Mr Henry Wong Shiu Kwan* Mr Thomas Yiu Kei Chung*
Mr Aaron Tan Leng Cheng*

(Appointed on 1 December 2017)

*Independent non-executive director

In gccordance with Article 98 of the Bank's Articles of Association, all ordinary directors retire in alternate years. Accordingly, all
ordinary directors remain in office.

(b} Directors of the Bank's subsidiaries

Buring the year and up to the date of this report, Mr. Ma Ching Yuk, Mr. Alfred Ma Ching Kuen, Mr. Patrick Ma Ching Hang, Mr, Philip
Ma Ching Yeung and Mr. Ma Ching Tsun are also directors in subsidiaries of the Bank. There are no other directors of the subsidiaries of
the Bank.

DIRECTORS' MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE GROUP'S BUSINESS
Except for the loans disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements, no other wansactions, arrangements and contracts of

significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Bank’s subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Bank had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year,

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN THE SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE BANK OR ANY SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING
OF THE BANK
At no time during the year was the Bank, its subsidiaries or its other associated corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the

directors and chief executives of the Bank (including their spouse and children under 18 years of age) fo hold any interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or its specified undertakings or other associated corporation.



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered

into or existed during the year,

BUSINESS REVIEW

{a} Review of Business

The Group's pre-tax operating profit before property revaluation gains and profits on disposal of available-for-sale investments increased by
67.53%, from HK$3.15 million in 2016 to HK$5.27 million in 2017. Dusing the vear, there were increases in sufe deposit box rentals (up
7.86%). In addtion, the Group noted an increase in net interest income (up 24.76%) due to the gradually increased interest rates and the
ability to place longer tenor interbank funds by the Group. On the other hand, operating expenses have been prudently monitored, which
recorded a 2.3% decrease when compared to 2016,

With total customer deposits increased by 11.61%, total assets grew 9.11% to reach HES1.86 billion in 2017 {2016: HK$1.71 billion). The
tevel of loans and advances and other acccounts slightly decreased by 1.56% while the amounts placed interbank increased by 13.48%.

During the year, all relevant laws and regulations were complied with. The Group's comservative management was reflected in its
maintaining a Total Capital Ratio exceeding 85% and Liquidity Maintenance Ratio exceeding 73% as at year end of 2017, which were
substantially above the statutory mininum.

With total headcount of around 30 and operating in a single location, the Group places a lot of emphasis on effective communications among
management and staff. A culture of operational efficiency, risk mitigation and compliance has been built, and a sensible work-life balance
for employees is promoted.

The Group observes a strict customer acceptance policy. While the aim is not to provide full range of banking services to satisfy all customer
needs, the Group is committed to deliver products and services with quality and flexibility such that solid customer relationships are
established and maintained.

The Group also supports the culture of environmental protection by promoting an environmental-friendly working environment,

(b) Principal Risks

The Group is exposed to various types of risks including credit risk, operational risk, tquidity risk, market risk, legal risk and strategic risk,
details of which are carried in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. Different Board committees, viz. Executive Committee, Credit
Committee, Asset & Liability Committee, Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee, are in place 1o oversee the risk management
framework and to identify, assess, monitor, review and give direction to management to control and mitigate these risks.

(¢} Important Events and Future Development

The likely normalization of the interest rafes in Hong Kong, resulting from an increase of US interest rates, will bring more opportunities for
the Group’s efficient asset utilization. The Group will continue its prudent management and will not assume unduc risks for the sake of
earnings. 2018 is expected to be another year of stable and balanced growth for the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this Directors' Report, there was or is, any permifted indemnity provision being in
foroe for the benefit of any of the directors of the Bank (whether made by the Bank or otherwise) or an associated company (if made by the

Bank).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE BANKING (DISCLOSURE) RULES
The Bank has complied with the requirements set out in the Banking (Disclosure) Rules under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

AUDITOR
The conselidated financial statements of the Group have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
ihernselves for reappointment,

On behalf of the Board

WILLIAM MA CHING WAI
Chairman

HONG KONG, 19 MARCH 2018



20174E12 31 HER Z & B BRI R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

31 December 31 December

0§35 2017 2016
Note HKS HKS
HEE ASSETS
S S RN RIS CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS 10 834,434,815 713,822,540
EHFENERsoaR1ZE12  PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS MATURING
1 B A BETWEEN ONE AND TWELVE MONTHS 1t 460,343,013 427,191,024
T e RS LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
AND OTHER ACCOUNTS 12 165,572,545 168,195,094
e AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 13 17,299,860 39,154,685
s BEH R PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 72,217,052 72,877,708
g L E INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16 311,400,000 284,700,000
ek B fREL TAX RECOVERABLE 10,073 1,898
P TOTAL ASSETS 1,861,277,358 1,705,942,949
=i LIABILITIES
BT DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS 17 1,134,950,948 1,016,930,337
o (R OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS 18 18,703,071 23,500,362
FEIRIE S CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES 5,120 8,729
AR DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 19 5,497,069 4,998,102
B TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,159,156,208 1,045,437,530
B2 EQUITY
B SHARE CAPITAL 20 310,000,000 310,000,000
B RESERVES 21 392,121,150 350,505,419
. rear TOTAL EQUITY 762,121,150 660,505,419
WHEEH01823F 196  APPROVED AND AUTHORISED FOR ISSUE BY THE
R PSREEE - BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON 19 MARCH 2018.
e MA CHING YUK )
HE BiE ALFRED MA CHING KUEN )} Directors
BEE PHILIP MA CHING YEUNG )

fpEm REE

B R AMEE

FHEOEZ S BALK
BMBEE 5 -

PATRICK MA CHING HANG General Manager

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1,861,277,358

1,705,942,94%

THE NOTES ON PAGES 10 TO 60 ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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ek 2017 2016
Note HKS HKS
INTEREST INCOME 3 11,606,279 9,341,697
INTEREST EXPENSE 3 (784,546) (667,486)
NET INTEREST INCOME 10,821,733 8,674,211
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 6 14,083,788 14,611,226
NET OPERATING INCOME 24,905,521 23,285,437
OPERATING EXPENSES 7 (19,634,533) (20,139,129
OPERATING PROFIT 5,270,988 3,146,308
PROFIT ON DISPOSAL OF AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
INVESTMENTS 10,294,882 1,008,482
REVALUATION SURPLUS ON INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES 6 26,700,600 2,900,000
1OSS ON DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (53,833) {20,428)
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 42,212,037 7,034,362
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9 {636,616) (175,008}
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS 41,575,421 6,859,354
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME :
ITEMS THAT MAY BE RECLASSIFIED SUBSEQUENTLY
TO PROFIT OR LOSS:
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 21 8,278,071 1,275,672
TRANSFER FROM INVESTMENT REVALUATION
RESERVE TO STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME UPON DISPOSAL OF AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
INVESTMENTS 21 (8,237,761) (1,005 424)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR,
NET OF TAX 40,310 270,248
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS 41,615,731 7,129,602

THE NOTES ON PAGES 10 TO 60 ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSCLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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Balance at 1 January 2017

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Change in fair value of available-for-sale

investments

Transfer from investment revaluation
reserve to statement of comprehensive

income

Total comprehensive income

Transfer and appropriation

Transfer from other properties revatuation

reserve to retained eamings

Total transfer and appropriation

Balance at 31 December 2017

Balance at 1 January 2016

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Change in fair value of available-for-sale

investments

Transfer from investment revaluation
reserve to statement of comprehensive

income

Total comprehensive income

Transfer and appropriation

Transfer from other properties revaluation

reserve to retained earnings

Transfer to regulatory reserve

Total transfer and appropriation

Balance at 31 December 2016

ek
Note

21

21

21

21

21

21

21

Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
HEA  HEfhiEs HepEE 4BEE
Share Other Retained
capital reserves CAITIngs Total
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
310,000,000 9,882,543 340,622,876  660,505419
- - 41,575,421 41,575,421
- 8278071 - 8,278,071
- (8,237,761 - {8,237,761)
- 40,310 41,575,421 41,615,731
- (64,091} 64,091 -
- (64,091) 64,091 -
310,000,000 9858762 382,262,388 702,121,150
310,000,000 9,576,387 333,799,430 653,375,817
- - 6,859,354 6,859,354
- 1,275,672 - 1,275,672
- (1,005,424) - (1,005,424}
- 270,248 6,859,354 _ 7,129,602
- (64,092) 64,092 -
- 106,000 {100,000 -
- 35,908 {35,508) -
310,000,000 9,882,543 340,622,876 660,505,419

THE NOTES ON PAGES 10 TO 60 ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS,
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
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NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

DIVIDENDS RECEIVED ON AVAILABLE-
FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

PURCHASE OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

PROCEEDS FROM DISPOSAL OF
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

PROCEEDS FROM DISPOSAL OF
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

PURCHASE OF AVAIL ABLE-FOR-SALE-
INVESTMENTS

NET CASH INFLOW FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
1 JANUARY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
31 DECEMBER

fEE
Note

22(a)

15

i3

22(b)

2017 2016
HKS HKS
155,392,963 26,765,717
1,012,582 1,463,391
(227,056) (56,559)
8,000 -
32,555,480 1,364,758
(365,464) (346,547)
32,983,542 2,425,043
188,376,505 29,190,760
848,544,660 819,353,900
1,036,921,165 848,544,660

THE NOTES ON PAGES 10 TO 60 ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
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General Information

The principal activities of Tai Sang Bank fimited (the * Bank ™) and its
subsidiaries {collectively the “Group™) are the provision of banking and related
financial services, and property investiment and management,

The Bank is an authorized institution incorporated in Hong Kong. The address
of its registered office is 130-132 Des Voecux Road Central, Hong Kong,

These consclidated financial statements are presented in ynits of Hong Kong

doliars (HK$), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 March 2018.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated,

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Tai Sang Bank Limited have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institate of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cap 0622, The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of bank premises, available-for-sale
investments and investment properties at fair value,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
Jjudgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 4,

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretations effective begioning 1
January 2017

The HKICPA has issued a namber of new standards and amendments to
standards that are mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2017. The Bank has made an assessment of these
standards, amendments and interpretations and considered that they do not
have significant impact on the consolidated financial statements and have
therefore not been analysed in detail.

(b) The following new standards, new interpretations and amendments fo
standards and interpretations have been issued but are not effective for
the financial year beginping 1 January 2017 and have not been early
adopted

HEKFRS 9 Financial instruments
Nature of Change

HKFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurements and derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities, introduces a new impairment
model for financial assets and new rules for hedge accounting.

10
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Summary of Significant Acconnting Policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) The

following new standards, new interpretations and

amendments to standards and interpretations have been issued but
are not effective for the financial year beginning 1 January 2017
and have not been early adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

Impact on the Group

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and liabilities and is
expecting the following impact from the adoption of the new standard
on I January 2018:

(i) Classification and Measurements

I

HKFRS 9 will replace the classification and measurerment model
in HKAS 39 with a new framework that categorises debt fype
financial assets based on business model within which the assets
are managed, and whether the contractual cash flows from the
financial assets solely represent the payment of principal and
interest,

The main financial assets held by the Group include:

- non-trading equity instruments currently classified as
available-for-sale (AFS) for which a fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) election is available and
will be elected

- debt instraments and loans and advances to customers
currently classified as held-to-maturity and measured at
amortised cost which meet the conditions for classification at
amortised cost under HKFRS 9

Accordingly, the Group does not expect the new guidance to
affect the classification and measurement of these financial assets.
However, gains or losses realized on the sale of financial assets at
FVOCI will no longer be transferred to profit or loss account on
sale, but instead reclassificd below the line from the investment
revaluation reserve to retained earnings. During the financiat year
2017, HK$8,237,761 of such gains were recognized in the profit
or Joss account by the Group in relation to the disposal of AFS
financial assets.

There will be no impact on the Group's accounting for financial
liabilities, as the new requirements only affect the accounting for
financial liabilities that are designated at fair value through profit
or loss and the Group does not have any such liabilities. The
derecognition rules have been transferred from HKAS 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” and have
not been changed.

(i} Impairment

Under the new impairment modei introduced by HKFRS 9,
impairment provisions are recognized based on expected
credit losses (ECL) rather than only incurred credit losses as
is the case under HKAS 39, This model applies to financial
assets classified at amortised cost, lease receivables, loan
commitments and certain financial guarantee contracts for
the Group and involves the assessment of ECL via the
classification of the above financial assets into three stages,
each of which is associated with an ECL requirement that
reflects the respective assessed credit risk profile in each
instance.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation {(Continued)

(b) The following new
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standards, new interpretations and
amendments to standards and interprefations have been issued
but are not effective for the financial year beginning 1 January
2017 and have not been early adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)
Impact on the Group (Continued)
(i) Impairment (Continued)

- Stage 1: a financial asset is classified under Stage | if it is
not a credit-impaired asset at origination and
there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since inception. A provision for 12 month
ECL is required.

a financial asset is classified nnder Stage 2 if it is
not a credit-impaired asset at origination but there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
inception. A provision for life time ECL is
required

- Stage 2:

a financial asset is classified under Stage 3 1f it
has been credit-impaired with objective evidence
of default. The ECL is expected to be materially
the same as the existing specific provision
atlowed for such asset.

- Stage 3:

ECL are probability-weighted amounts determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes and taking into
account past events, current conditions and assessments of
future economic conditions. The evaluation process will
necessarily involve judgement,

The Group has assessed its financial asscts that are subject to
the ECL impairment model and expects that there will not be
any material increases in its existing loan loss provisions upon
the adoption of HKFRS 9.

(iii} Hedge Accounting

HKFRS 9 introduces a more principles-based approach to
assess the effectiveness of hedging instruments. As a general
role, more hedge relationships might be eligible for hedge
accounting under this approach. The Group expects that the
new standard does not have any impact on the Group.

HKFRS 9 also introduces expanded disclosure requirements and
changes in presentation. These are expected to change the nature
and extent of the Group’s disclosures about its financial instruments
particularly in the year of adoption of the new standard.

Date of adoption by the Group

The new standard must be applied for finencial years commencing
on or after 1 January 2018, The Group will apply the new standard
retrospectively from 1 January 2018, with the praciical expedients
permitted under the standard. Comparatives for 2017 will not be
restated.
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amendments to standards and interpretations have been issued
but are not effective for the financial year beginning ¥ January
2017 and have not been early adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the recognition of
revenue. This will replace HKAS 18 which covers contracts for
goods and services and HKAS 11 which covers construction
contracts. The new standard is based on the principle that revenue is
recognised when controf of a good or service transfers to a customer.

Impact on the Group

Upon an assessment made by the Group on the effects of applying
this new standard, the Group has concluded that the standard does
not have material impact on its financial statements,

Date of adoption by the Group

The new standard must be applied for financial years commencing on
or after 1 Janwary 2018. The standard permits either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach for the adoption,
The Group will adopt the standard using the modified retrospective
approach which means that any cumulative impact of the adoption
will be recognized in retained earnings as of 1 January 2018 and that
comnparatives will not be restated.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being recognised on the
balance sheet, as the distinction between operating and finance leases
is removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the
leased item} and a financial lability to pay rentals are recognised.
The only exceptions are short-term and low-value Jeases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the Group's
operating leases. As at the reporting date, the Group is operating
mainly as a lessor and only has ceriain minimal operating lease
commitments as lessee. However, the Group has not yet determined
to what extent these commitments will result in the recognition of an
asset and a liability for future payments and how this will affect the
group’s profit and classification of cash flows.

Some of the commitments may be covered by the exception for short-
term and low value leases and some commitments may relate to
arrangements that will not qualify as leases under HKFRS 16.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years commencing on or
after 1 January 2019, Al this stage, the Group does not intend to
adopt the standard before its effective date.

There are no other HKFRSs or HK(IFRIC) interpretations that are
not yet effective that would be expected to have a material impact on
the Group.

13
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.2

2.3
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Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Bank and all its subsidiaries made uwp to 31
BPecember.

Subsidiaries are all entities {including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those retums through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group, They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companics are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank's statement of financial position (Note 26), the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses (Note 2.13). The results of subsidiaries are
accounted by the Bank on the basis of dividend received and
receivable. Dividend income from subsidiaries is recognised in the
income statement when the right to receive payment is established,

There are no restrictions, or other major impediments on the transfer
of funds or regulatory capital between the Group companies.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the comsolidated
statement of comprehensive income for all instruments measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of
allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability, When
calculating fhe effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit
losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or received between
parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets have
been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income
is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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Fee and commission income and expense

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Loan commitment fees for loans
that are likely to be drawn down are deferred (together with related
direct costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the effective interest
rate on the loan. Commission and fees arising from negotiating, or
participating in the negotiation of, a transaction for a third party - such
as the arrangement of the acquisition of shares or other securities or
the purchase or sale of businesses -~ are recognised on completion of
the underlying transaction.

Einancial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and receivables or
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition,

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial agsets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active markef. Loans
and receivables are initially recognised at fair value and measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method thereafter.

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives financial assets that
are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. Available-for-sale investments are those intended to
be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in response
to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or
equity prices,

Regular purchases and sales of securities are recognised on trade-date
- the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or where the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Available-for-sale investments are carried at fair value, Unrealised
gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-for-
sale investments are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income, until the financial asset is derecognised or impaired. At this
time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity
should be recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. However, interest calculated using the effective interest
method and foreign currency gains and losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Dividends on
available-for-sale  equity instruments are recognised in  the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income when the Group's
right to receive payment is established.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices.
Available-for-sale investments which do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value camnot be reliably
measured, are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less impairment loss.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.6

2.7

(a)

Fair value estimation of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities
traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives and trading
securities) are based on quoted market prices at the close of trading on the
reporting date.

Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of cach reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assefs is impaired and
impairment Josses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a 'loss event) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. The
criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is objective evidence of
an impairment losgs include :

Delinguency in contractual payments of principal or interest;
Cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower;

Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

Initiation of bankruptey proceedings;

Deterioration of the berrower’s competitive position;
Deterioration in the value of collateral; and

Downgrading below investment grade Jevel.

e e @ & % @ 9

The estimated period between a loss occurring and its identification is
determined by management for each identified portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and
individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individuaily
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assefs with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included
in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(exchuiding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a
collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that may result from
foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or
not foreclosure is probable.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.7
@

(®)

Impairment of financial assets {Continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost {Continued)

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial
assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics
(i.e. on the basis of the Group's grading process that considers asset
type, industry, geographical location, collateral type, overdue status
and other relevant factors). Those characteristics are relevant to the
estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being
indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to
the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively
evaluated for impairment are estitnated on the basis of the contractual
cash flows of the assets in the Group and historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the Group.
Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of cumrent
observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not
affect the period on which the historical loss experience is based and
to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not
currently exist,

Estimates of change in future cash flows for groups of assets should
reflect and be directionally consistent with changes in related
observable data from period to period (for example, property prices,
payment status, or other factors indicative of changes in the
probability of losses in the group and their magnitude). The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows
are teviewed regularly by the Group to reduce any differences
between loss estimates and actual loss experience,

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related
allowances for loan impairment. Such loans are written off after all
the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the
Toss has been determined.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the Impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Assets classified as available-for-sale

Equity Investments

The (Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is considered in determining whether the
assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
securities, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income - is removed from equity and
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on equity instruments classified as available-
for-sale are not reversed through the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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2.8

29

Financial Habilities

Financial liabilities are classified at inception, recognised initially at
fair value net of transaction costs incurred and carried at amortised
cost, Any difference between proceeds net of transaction costs and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period of the financial liabilities
using the effective interest method,

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the consolidated statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an infention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

2.10 Foreign currency fransiation

18

(a} Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates ( “ the
functional currency™). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Bank's functional
currency and the Group's presentation currency.

(b} Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are iranslated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are remeasured, Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and labilities denominated in foreign
cwrrencies are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Changes in the fuir value of monetary securities denominated in
foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in the
amortised cost of the securities and other changes in the carrying
amount of the securities, Translation differences related to
changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, and other changes in the
carrying amount are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary items are reported as
part of the fuir value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-meonetary items, such as equities classified as available-for-
sale securities, are included in the investment revaluation reserve
in equity.
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FPropertv, plant and eguipment

Bank premises represent those properties held for own use and are
treated as finance lease since the costs of land and building elements
of the leasehold properties cannot be allocated reliably at the
inception of the lease. Bank premises are stated at valuation made in
prior years less accumufated depreciation charge and impairment
losses,

On adoption of HKAS 16 entities that measured property, plant and
equipment based on revaluation performed prior to 30 September
1995 were exempted from the requirement to make regular
revaluations prospectively, provided that these entities did not
measure their property, plant and equipment using the revaluation
model subsequent to 1995,

Effective from 30 September 1995, no further revaluations of bank
premises have been carried out. The Group has adopted the
transitional provision in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16, which provides
exemption from the need to make regular revaluation of bank
premises.

The revalued amount made prior to 30 September 1995 became a
deemed cost as the revaluation date for subsequent measurement
under HKAS 16.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items, Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Bank premises are depreciated over their
estimated useful life. Any previously revalued
amount is depreciated on a straight line basis
over the remaining portion of the useful life.

Bank premises

Leasehold
improvements

Remaining portion of the useful life of the bank
premises.

Furniture, fixtures and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and
accunrulated impairment losses. Depreciation is
calculated at 10% per annum on a reducing
balance basis after an initial provision of 20%
on cost in the year of purchase.

Furniture, fixtures
& equipment

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Assets that are
subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately fo ifs
recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount.
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Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising land and office buildings,
are held by the owner or by the lessee under a finance lease for long-
term yields or for capital appreciation or both, and are not occupied by
the Group.

Land held under operating lease is classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the definition of investment
property is met. The operating lease is accounted for as if it were a
finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
{rangaction costs,

After initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value
assessed by professional valuers on the basis of open market value, If
information of open market value is not available, alternative valuation
methods are used such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in
accordance with valuation standards on properties published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The item is stated at cost less impairment and is included in the
carrying amount of investment properties. Once the item begins to
generate economic benefits, it is then measured at fair value, Al other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the income statermnent
during the financial peried in which they are incurred.

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income,

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as
premises, and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its
cost for accounting purposes. If an item of premises becomes an
investment property because #s use has changed, any difference
resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at
the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income as a
revaluation of premises under HKAS 16 "Property, Plant and
Equipment”. However, #f a fair value gain reverses a previous
revaluation loss or impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the income
staternent up to the amount previously debited.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation,
but are tested annually for impairment and are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Assets other than
goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date,
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The tax expense for the perfod comprises current and defetred tax.
Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to iterns recognised
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the fax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the country where the company's subsidiaries operate and
generate {axable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation, It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities,

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their canrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

The principal temporary differences arise from depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, revaluation of bank premises and tax
losses carried forward. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from injtial recogmition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future,

The tax effects of income tax losses available for carry forward are
recognised as an asset when it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which these losses can be utilised.

Emplovee benefits

{a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated Hability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised unti] the time of leave.
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Employee benefits (Continued)

{b) Pension obligations

Group companies offer defined contribution mandatory
provident funds to all eligible employees of the Group. The funds
are provided through payments to trustee-administered funds.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to
publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributtons are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

() Long service payments

The Group's eligible employees who have completed 2 required
number of years of service to the Group are eligible for long
service payments under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
in the event of the termination of their employment, provided
that such termination meects the circumstances specified in the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of the probable future long
service payments expected to be made. The provision is based on
the best estimate of the probable firture payments which have
been carned by the employees from their service to the Group to
the end of the reporting period.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to
be related to the Group if that party controls, jointly controls or has
significant influence over the Group; is a member of the same
financial reporting group, such as parents, subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries; is an associate or a joint venture of the Group; is a key
management personnel of the Group or parents, or where the Group
and the party are subject to common control. Related parties may be
individuals or entities.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it 1s more likely than
not that an outflow of resources will be required to sctile the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be reguired in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelthood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks gpecific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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2.318 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with
banks and ceniral bank, placements with banks and exchange
fund papers with original maturities of three months or less, that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial Risk Mapagement

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those
activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management
of some degree of risk or combination of risks, Taking risk is core to
the financial business, and the operational risks are an inevitable
consequence of being in business. The Group's aim is therefore to
achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

The Group's risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to
monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-
to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,
products and emerging best practice.

Risk management iz carried out by senior management under policies
approved by the Board of Directors. Financial risks are identified,
evaluated and managed in close co-operation with the Group's
operating units. The Board provides written policies or guidelines
covering areas, such as credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk.
In addition, internal audit is responsible for the independent review of
risk management and the control environment.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liguidity risk, market
risk and other operational risks. Market risk includes currency risk,
interest rate and other price risks.

3.1 Credit risk

The Group takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk
that & counterparty will cause a financial loss for the Group by
failing to discharge an obligation. Significant changes in the
economy, or in the health of a particular industry segment that
Tepresents & concentration in the Group's portfolio, could result
in Josses that are different from those provided for at the end of
reporting period. Management therefore carefully manages its
exposure to credit risk. Credit exposures arise principally in
loans and advances. There ig also credit risk in off-balance sheet
financial arrangements sach as loan commitments. The credit
risk management and control are performed by senior
management under close supervision by the Board of Directors.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued}

3.1.1 Credit risk mapagement

The Group manages, limits and controls concentrations of credit risk
wherever they are identified - in particular, to individual counterparties
and groups, and to industries. The Group structures the Ievels of credit
risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in
relation to one borrower, or groups of borrowers, and fo industry
segments. Such risks are monitored on a revolving basis and subject to
an annal or more frequent review, when considered necessary.

Exposure fo credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the ability
of borrowers and potential borrowers to meet interest and capital
repayment obligations and by changing these lending limits where
appropriate. Exposure to credit risk is also managed in part by obtaining
collateral and corporate and personal guarantees.

{a) Collateral

The Group implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific
classes of collateral. The principal collateral types for loans and
advances are !

- Mortgages over residential and commercial properties;
- Charges over equities; and
- Pledges over deposits.

Loans and advances to customers are generally secured. In
addition, the Group will seek additional collateral from the
counterparty as soon as impairment indicators are noticed for the
relevant individual loans and advances,

(b) Credit-related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds
are available to a customer as required, Guarantees and standby
letters of credit - which represent irrevocable assurances that the
Group will make payments in the event that a customer cannot
meet its obligations to third parties carry the same credit risk as
toans. Documentary and commercial letters of credit - which are
written undertakings by the Group on behalf of a customer
authorising a third party to draw drafts on the Group up fo a
stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions - are
collateralised by the underlying shipments of goods to which they
relate.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of
authotisations to extend credit in the form of loans, guarantees or
letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to
extend credit, the Group is potentially exposed to loss in an amount
equal to the total unused comunitments. However, the likely
amount of loss is less than the total unused commitments, as most
commitments to extend credit are contingent upon custorners
maintaining specific credit standards.
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Financial Risk Management {Continued)

3.1

3.1.2

Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other eredit
enhancements

The Group
AR
Maximum exposure

2017 2016

HK$ HKS$
Credit risk exposures relating to on-
balance sheet assets are as follows:
Balances with banks and central bank 430,354,907 541,073,943
Placements with banks 860,343,013 597,191,024

Loans and advances to customers :
Loans to individuals :

- Overdrafts 2,306,768 2,017,317
- Mortgages 6,059,116 8,541,722
Loans to corporate entities :
- Investment companies 153,089,991 148,536,977
- Small and medium size
enferprises (SMEs) 800,051 1,454,972
Credit risk exposures relating to off-
balance sheet iterns are as follows:
- Financial guarantees 4,000,000 4,000,000
- Loan commitments and other
credit related liabilities 21,580,616 6,785,246
At 31 December 1,478,543,462 1,309,601,201

The above table represents a worst case scenario of credit risk exposure to the
Group at 31 December 2017 and 2016, without teking into account any
collateral held or other credit enhancements attached. For on-balance sheet
assets, the exposures set out above are based on net carrying amounts as
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Management is confident in its ability to continue to control and sustain
minimal exposure of credit risk to the Group resulting from its loan and
advances portfolio based on the following :

- 100% of the loans and advances portfolic is categorised in the top grade
of the internal rating system (2016 : 100%);

- Mortgage loans and properties investment loans, which represent the
majority of the loans and advances portfolio, are backed by collateral;

- 100% of the loans and advances portfolio is considered to be neither past
due nor impaired (2016 : 100%); and

- The Group has a stringent selection process in granting loans and
advances.

Credit risk mitigation, collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group uses a variety of techniques o reduce the credit risk ansing from
its lending activities. Enforceable legal documentation establishes the Group's
direct, irrevocable and unconditional recourse fo any collateral, security or
other credit enhancements provided.
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Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.2 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit

enhancements {Continued)

The table below describes the nature of collateral held and their financial
effect by class of financial asset:

These exposures are generally considered to be low
credit risk due to the nature of the counterparties.
Collateral is generally not sought on these balances,

Balances and
placements with
banks and other

financial

institutions

Loans and These exposures are secured, partially secwred or

advances unsecured depending on the type of collateral and
type of facilities offered to customers, The major
types of collateral taken include residential properties,
other properties, benk deposits and shares.
Recognised guarantees are alse employed by the
Group for credit enhancement. As at 31 December
2017, the collateral coverage of loans and advances to
customers is 99.88% (2016: 100%).

Contingent The components and nature of contingent liabilities

liabilities and and commitments are disclosed in Note 25. Regarding

commitments the commitments that are unconditionally cancellable

without prior notice, the Group would withdraw the
credit facilities extended to borrowers in case their
credit quality deteriorates, Accordingly, these
commitments do not expose the Group to significant
credit risk. As at 31 December 2017, the collateral
coverage of contingent liabilities and comrnitments is
99.99% (2016: 100%).

3.1.3 Loans and advances and placements with banks

Loans and advances and placements with banks are summarised as follows :

20174E12H319 20164128318

31 Decemnber 2017 31 December 2016

G SRITIRIZEN Y ZTEEREL  RITHEERRK
Loans and Loans and

advances to Placements advances to Placements

customers with banks customers with banks

HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$

162,255,926 860,343,013 160,550,988 597,191,024

There were no loans and advances that were past due but not impaired nor
loans and advances that were impaired at 31 December 2017 and 2016, The
credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that were neither past
due nor impaired was of satisfactory grading by reference to the internal
rating system adopted by the Group.

During the year, the Group did not obtain any assets by taking possession
of collateral held as security (2016 : Nil). The Group has no rescheduled
loans (2016 : Nil} nor repossessed assets (2016 : Nil) as at 31 December
2017.
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The Group

At 31 December 2017

Placements with banks

{omns and advances to
cusiomers :

Loans to individuals :

- Overdrafts

- Mortgages

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

31

Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.4 Concentration of risks of financial assets with gredit risk exposure

(a)

Loans to corporate entities :

~ Investment companies
- SMEs

At 31 December 2016

Placements with banks

Loans and advances o
customers :

Loans to individuals :
= Qverdrafis

- Mortgages

Loans to corporate entities :

~ Investment companies

- SMEs

Geographical sectors

The following table sets out the breakdown of the Group's main credit
exposure at their carrying amounts, as categorised by geographical
region as of 31 December 2017 and 2016, For this distribution, the
Group has allocated exposures to regions based on the country of
domicile of its counterparties. Credit risk exposure by geographical
sectors is classified according to the location of counterparties after

taking into account the transfer of risk.

SRE
EERI
Asia Pacific
itk excluding B FAESE]
Hong Kong Hong Kong Europe Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK3$
- 860,343,013 - 860,343,013
2,306,768 - - 2,306,768
6,059,116 - - 6,059,116
153,089,991 - - 153,689,991
800,051 - - 800,051
162,255,926 860,343,013 - 1,022,598,939
170,000,000 377,191,024 50,000,000 597,191,024
2,017317 - - 2017317
8,541,722 - - 8,541,722
148,536,977 - - 148,536,977
1,454,972 - - 1,454.972
330,550,988 377,191,024 50,000,000 757,742,012
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Financial Risk Management {(Continued)

31 Credit risk {Continued)

3.1.4 Bf¥ 3.1.4 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure
{Continued)
(Z) 1i¥nE {b)  Industry sectors

The following table sets out the breakdown of the Group's main credit exposure at
their carrying amounts, as categorised by the industry sectors of its counterparties.

PUFRBRIEEENABEEE X
RERRBRBURHHF TR

pak iy i
HE The Group
#HE R
TEHES
WA¥5HHE  Whole-sale BENTE
Financial  and retail Investment i A kG
institutions trade companies Individuals Total
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HEKS$
FR2017F12H31H As at 31 December 2017
e Placements with banks 860,343,013 - - - 860,343,013
ZrERrE Loans and advances to
CUStomers :
{8 A5k . Loans to individuals :
- EY - Overdrafis - - - 2,306,768 2,306,768
- T - Mortgages . - - 6,059,116 6,059,116
R - Loans to corporate
entities :
- JEAE - Investment companies - - 153,089,991 - 153,089,991
-t - SMEs - 800,051 - - 800,051
860,343,013 800,051 153,089,991 8,365,884 1,022,598,939
W20164E12831H  Asat3] December 2016
I E e Placements with banks 597,191,024 - - - 597,191,024
ZERE Loans and advances to
customers :
EAER Loans to individuals :
~BEX - Overdrafis - - - 2,017,317 2,017,317
- 1B - Mortgages - - - 8,541,722 8,541,722
e Loans to corporate
entities :
- {FENE - Investment companies - - 148,536,977 - 148,536,977
- Bl - SMEs - 1,454,972 - - 1,454,972
597,191,024 1,454,972 148,536,977 10,559,039 757,142,012
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Market risk

The Group takes on minimal exposure to market risks, which is the
risk that the fair value or fiture cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctnate because of changes in market prices. Market risks arise
from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all
of which are exposed to general and specific market movements and
changes in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as
interest rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity
prices.

The Group performs periodic stress tests to monitor its exposures {0
market risks. Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of
losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress tests carried
out by the Group are in general risk factor stress testing, where stress
movements are applied to risk category.

The results of the stress tests are reviewed by senior management and
by Board Committees. The stress testing is tailored to the business
and typically uses scenario analysis.

Sensitivity analysis for 2017 and 2016

As at 31 December 2017, no significant open positions in foreign
currencies were faken, hence the net interest income for foreign
curTencies were not sensitive to interest rate changes. Interest
sensitivity applies mainly to Hong Kong Dollar (‘'HKD") positions,
whereby if the HKID market interest rates had been 50 basis points
lower with other variables held constant, the Group's profit after tax
for the year and reserves would have been HK$2,975,720 (2016;
HK$2,456,385) lower. This arose as a result of lower net interest
income earned on floating rate financial instruments,

The Group's equity risk position arises mainly from the holdings of
equity securities all being classified as available-for-sale, the
majority of which being listed in Hong Kong. Such holdings are held
for long term investment purpose. At 31 December 2017, if Hang
Seng Index had been 10% lower (2016: 10% lower) with all other
variables held constant and the equity instruments moved according
to the historical correlation with the index, the Group's profit after
tax would remain unchanged (2016: unchanged), while the Group's
investment revaluation reserve would be HK$1.491,774 lower
(2016: HK53,364,808 lower). The Group's available-for-sale equity
securities would be HK31,491,774 lower (2016: HK$3,364,808
lower).

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, majority of the Group's financial
assets and liabilities are denominated in HKD or United States
dollars ('USD") and as HKD is pegged to the USD, therefore the
Group is not exposed to significant currency risk.

The method and assumption used on the above sensitivity analysis on
interest rate risk and equity price risk is performed on the same basis
for both 2017 and 2016.



Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.2 Market risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Foreign exchange

3.2.2 JhMEREL

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing
foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash
flows. The table below summarises the Group's exposure to foreign
currency exchange rate risk at 31 December. Included in the table are

SEERZER TR/ EERG ST AHHE Y
RHEREFTEEREE AR - LT 2%
MR M 12 H 31 B FR S 2 AMSER R
B REBOEEECEENSEIIREE -

I M S - the Group's assets and labilities at carrying amounts, categorised by
currency.
WEEBHREARMEG BB Concentrations of currency risk on-and off-balance sheet items
e =TT EAth B
HK Dollars US Dollars Cthers Total
HKS HK$ HKS HK§
3 | The Group
#2017#E12H31H At 31 December 2017
BE Assets
EFEEREFEHRE R Cash and balances with banks 833,715,133 168,620 551,062 834,434,815
EEEIRRr I Ig N Placements with banks maturing
12 B A FEIEE between one and twelve months 450,000,000 10,343,013 - 460,343,013
Z BB K H g Loans and advances to customers
and other accounts 165,534,809 37,719 17 165,572,545
I ERE Available-for-sale investments 17,234,355 65,505 - 17,299,860
Wik BEE R Froperty, plant and equipment 72,217,052 - - 72,217,052
e Investment properties 311,400,000 - - 311,400,600
BE A [t FREr Tax recoverable 10,073 - - 10,073
PSR Tetal assets 1,850,111,422 10,614,857 551,079 1,861,277,358
B Liabilities
ol ity Deposits from customers 1,124,852.478 9,850,599 247,871 1,134,950,948
BB E Other liabilities and provisions 18,647,550 55,512 9 18,703,071
AHIR RS Currrent tax Habilities 5,120 - - 5,120
EEREIEHSE Deferred tax liabilities 5,497,069 - - 5,497,069
BeEt Total liabilities 1,149,002,217 9,906,111 247,880 1,159,156,208
Pt (EFerBeE Net on-balance sheet position 701,109,205 708,746 303,199 702,121,150
EHRE Credit commitments 23,961,312 - 1,628,304 25,589,616
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.2  Market risk {(Continued)

3.2.2 Foreign exchange {Continued)

Pt ET HAt R
HK Dollars US Dollars Cthers Total
HK$ HKS$ HKS HK$
The Group
20165£12H31H At 31 December 2016
B Assets
BEREREREE Cash and balances with banks 713,113,868 143,352 565,320 713,822,540
o= Bk E SRR TE A | Placements with banks maturing
Z1E B MNEIHE between one and twelve months 400,000,000 27,191,024 - 427,191,024
E PR R H AT BRI Loans and advances to customers
and other accounts 168,164,979 30,100 15 168,195,094
B Available-for-sale investments 39,096,219 58,466 - 39,154,685
¥ HEREE Property, plant and equipment 72,877,708 - - 72,877,708
HEnE Investment properties 284,700,000 - - 284,700,000
seUTEl R Tax recoverable 1,898 - - 1,898
HELEr Total assets 1,677,954,672 27,422,942 565,335 1,705,942.949
‘% Liabilities
T Deposits from customers 990,299,348 26,388,147 242,842 1,016,930,337
Hib & {H 5 EE Other liabilities and provisions 23,438,189 62,167 6 23,500,362
AHARTE B Currrent tax liabilities 8,729 - - 8,729
B AOTE Deferred tax liabilities 4,998,102 . - 4,998,102
=t reria Total liabilities 1,018,744,368 26,450,314 242,848 1.045,437,530
HEAMEARE Net on-balance sheet position 659,210,304 972,62% 322,487 660,505,419
ZHERE Credit commitments 9,641,898 - 1,143,348 10,785,246
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)}

3.2

Marcket risk (Continned)

3.2.3 Interest rate risk

Interest sensitivity of assets, labilities and off-balance sheet Hems -
repricing analysis

Cash flow interest rate risk is the rsk that the future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group takes on exposure to the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing evels of market interest rates on both its
fair value and cash flow risks, Interest margins may increase as a result of such
changes but may reduce or create losses in the event that unexpected movements
arise. The Board sets Hmits on the level of mismatch of interest rate Tepricing
that may be undertaken, which is monitored daily by senior management.

The table below summarises the Group's exposure fo interest rate risks. Included
in the table are the Group's assets amd Habilities af carrying amounts,
categorised by the earlier of contractusl repricing or maturity dates.

HE Fhe Group
3212 1235 faégic R
HEHEA IZEMEA #H 4 5 Non-
Upto 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over interest B
1 month months months vears  3vears bearing Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS HKS HK3 HK$ HKS$
20178128 At 31 December
31H 2017
BE Assets
EEFEIR & R AER Cash and balances
[ with banks 400,598,441 - - - - 433 836,374 834,434 815
TR EI%E; Placements with
ERIEI2{#EA benks maturing
PYEGRR between one and
twelve months - 360,343,013 100,000,000 - - - 460,343,013
FEERE R EM Loans and advances
BRIR to customers and
other accounts 97,303,169 64,952,757 - - - 3,316,619 165,572,545
THERE Available-for-sale
investments - - - - - 17,299,860 17,299,860
HuEE Other assets . - - - - 383,627,125 383,627,125
HEASE Total assets 497,501,610 425,295,770 100,000,000 - - 838,079,978 1,861,277358
& Liabilities
EFEX Deposits from
customers 898,957,122 67,394,011 76,900,000 - - 91,699,815  1,134,950,948
e Other labilites - - - - - 24,205,260 24,205,260
BEEH Total liabilities 898,957,122 _ 67,394,011 _ 76,900,000 - - 115,905,075 _1,159,156,208

BIFEREEEEE Total interest

Bt

sensitivity gap

{401,055,512) 357,901,759

23000000 - .
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.2 Market risk (Continued)

3.2.3 Interest rate risk (Continued)

$HE The Group
20164212 H At 3F December
314 2016
RE Assets
EEHS&RET  Cash and balances
Tl S with banks
EHEHEAE ¥ Placements with
PR IZEIME  banks maturing
pEReE:l-c ] between one and
twelve months
EEWEEE  Loans and advances
HIRRTEH to customers and
other accounts
T ENE Available-for-sale
investments
HANEE Other assets
ey Totial assets
=1 Liabilities
ERER Deposits from
customers
EeaE Other liabilities
=Ci v 'Total liabilities
SIFRE2E  Total interest
BEast sensitivity gap
3.3

RERERREENREARRNAENE R
FEEZRERECTEES BNLEESR
BRINER) CEFTHE -

RE B ESEERFHSREEEREE
SREFRREZBEREES I ETEYEE - I8

BT IA

i

- R RSB RS EHGHERAER

- BEERRBRSHEEHE RS EREWRE

fEREEERERE 7 RAPTERE

- WRNSRAMHERTREESER &

- BHESIHEY PR RER -

1E]2 15 #i8 SEEE
18 H LA 1ZE3B A EA 5 SE Non-
Upto 13 3-12 1-5 Over interest k]
month menths months years  2vears bearing Total
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK3% HK3 HKS HK$
170,566,709 - - - - 543,255,831 713,822,540
- 327,191,024 100,000,000 - - - 427,191,024
29,574,805 70,976,183 - - - 7,644,106 168,195,094
- - - - - 39,154,685 39,154,685
- - - - - 357,579,606 357,579,606
260,141,514 398,167,207 100,000,000 - - 947,634,228  1,705,942,949
776,629,458 23,924,013 76,900,000 - - 79,476,866  1,016,930,337
- - - - - 28,507,193 28,507,193
776,629,458 83,924,013 76,900,000 - - 147,984,059 1,045,437,530
(516,487,944) 314243194 23,100,000 - -

3.3 Liguidity Risk

33

Liquidity risk arises from the mismatch in the cash flows arising
from on-balance sheet assets and liabilities, plus the settlement
characteristics of off-balance sheet activities.

The Group's liquidity management process, as closely monitored
by senior management in accordance with policies and guidelines
established by the Board, includes the following tasks :

- day-to-day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to
ensure that requirements can be met;

- maintaining adequate amount of highly marketable assets that
can easily be liquidated as protection against any unforeseen
interruption to cash flow;

- monitoring liquidity ratios against internal and regulatory
requirements; and

- managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.3 Liguidi

risk (Continned

Monitoring and reporting take the form of maturity profile projections
for the next day, week and month respectively, as these are key periods
for liquidity management. Mismatches between medium-term assets
and Habilities together with the level and type of undrawn lending
commitments, overdraft facilities usage and contingent habilities are
also monitored under the usual conservative strategy of the Group.

3.3.1

Maturity analysis

The table on the following page analyses the Group's assets and
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date.

The Group
izFz 1E5 R
HIiEH HE R A 1ZE3@H @A i 54
Repayable on Upto 1-3 3.12 1-5 Over FEEIHEEH ek
demand 1 month months months Years 5 years Indefinite Total
HK$ HKS$ HKS HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS
At 31 December
2017
Assets
Cash and
balances with
banks 434 434 815 400,000,000 . - - - - 834,434 815
Placements with
benks maturing
between one and
twelve months - - 360,343,013 100,000,000 - - - 460,343,013
Loans and
advances o
customers and
other accounts 96,163,380 043,620 2,092,987 5,280,755 60,200,955 - 890,848 165,572,545
Available-for-sale
investments - - . - - 17,299,860 17,299,860
Property, plant
and equipment - - - - - 72,217,052 72,217,052
Investment
properties - - - - - 311,400,000 311,400,000
Tax recoverable
- - - 10,073 - - 16,073
Total assets 530,598,195 400,943,620 362,436,000 105,290,828 60,200,955 ~ 401,807,760 1,861,277,358
Liabilities
Deposits from
customers 960,656,937 - 67,394,011 76,900,000 - - - 1,134,950,948
Other ligbilities
and provisions 3,655,239 1,403,179 1,920,185 9,168,154 2,556,314 - - 18,703,071
Current tax
labilities - - - 5,120 - - - 5,120
Deferred tax
liabilities - - - - - - 5,497,069 5,497,069
Total liabilities 994,312,176 1,403,179 69,314,196 86,073,274 2,556,314 - 5497069  1,159,156,208
Net liquidity
gap (463,713,981) 399,540,44% 293,121,804 19,217,554 57,644,641 - 396,310,691 702,121,150



Figancial Risk Management (Continued)
3.3  Liguidity risk (Continned)
3.3.1 Maturity profile (Confinued)

b-=40 ‘The Group
3FE12 1E5 poERG
HITHA HEHELA [ EX )z HBE £ S
Repayable on Upto 1-3 312 1-5 Over ERIETH LHAE
demand 1 month months months years 3 years Indefinite Total
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS
20164 At 31 December
12A31H 2016
B Assets
HEfFERSE  Cashand
B balances with
iy banks 543,822,540 170,000,000 - - - - - 713,822,540

SEHEfEAY  Placements with

[BlE5IE  banks maturing

FHZE12{E  between one and

RPZE  twelve months - - 327,191,024 100,000,000 “ “ - 427,191,024

& Efyer  Loans and
EEAbEE  advances 1o

3H customers and

other accounts 93,339,796 570,442 2,712,215 SAT0967 65261049 - 840,625 168,195,094
T B Available-for-
] sale investments - - - - - - 39,154,685 39,154,685
Y - 8% Property, plant
BE#% and equipment - “ . - - - 72,877,708 72,877,708
Hygsnsg  Invesiment

properties - - - - . - 284,700,000 284,700,000
BRI 2§82 Tax recoverable
= - . - 1,898 - - . 1,898
S  Total assets 637,162,336 170,570,442 329,903,239 105472865 65,261,049 - 397,573,018 1,705,942,949
=l Liabilities
ZEFEE Deposits from

customers 849,455,995 6,650,329  83,924013 76,900,000 . . - 1,016,930,337
HArEE  Other liabilities
B and provisions 9,543,091 1,462,835 2,015,000 9,563,983 915,453 - - 23,500,362
FHPEE  Current tax
=1 ligbilities - - - 8,729 - - - 8,729
Warfery  Deferred tax
Bl Habilities - - - - - - 4,998,102 4,908,102

W

RIVERT  Total liabilities 858,999,086 8,113,164 85939013 86,472,712 915453 - 4998102 1,045437,530

BB Net liquidity
Loyl gap (221,836,750) 162,457,278 243,964,226 19,000,153 64,345,596 - 392,574,916 660,505,419
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.3 Liguidity risk (Continued)

3.3.2 Non-derivative financial liabilities and assets held for mapaging Hyuidi

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under non-
derivative financial liabilities and assets held for managing liguidity risk by
remaining contractual maturities as at the end of the reporting period. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the confractual undiscounted cash flows,
whereas the Group manages the inherent liquidity risk based on expected
undiscounted cash inflows.

MFREFREAREG AR
EEFIREERFITEMBERER
T RAFERR R G REE
ErHERE - REREBNTERZ8
BHEGREHZESRE - TTH
B E R RR SR ARRE

HEBHERBESRR -
#HE The Group
HEH A 1E3EH IEIMEA BiE
Upto 1.3 3-12  More than ]
1_month months months 1 vear Total
HRKS HKS$ HKS HKS HK$
20174128315 At 31 December 2017
FEfFEBESTE Non-derivative cash flow
=58 Liabilities
& REEr Deposits from customers 990,656,937 67,394,011 76,900,000 - 1,134,950,948
EfrEE Other liabilities 5,058,419 1,975,849 7,704,172 2,556,313 17,294,753
EREE(SHEIE  Total liabilities
H) {contractual maturity) 995,715,356 69,369,860 84,604,172 2,556,313 1,152,245,701
HieEsmehirem  Assets held for managing
B2 BEEHBIRIH)  lquidity risk (contractual
maturity) 834,621,818  361,969964 100,725,965 - 1,297317,747
201648128318 At 31 December 2016
FEETERENE Non-derivative cash flow
B Liabilities
&= EEE Deposits from customers 856,106,324 83,924,013 76,900,060 - 1,016,930,337
Hit& s Other liabilities 11,007,252 2,079,719 7,871,965 915,453 21,880,389
BRI (SHEH  Total liabilities
=?/) (contractueal maturity) 867,113,576 86,003,732 84,777 965 915,453 1,038,810,726
B S EREE  Assets held for managing
B EE(SHEHIE)  liquidity risk (contractual
maturity) 714,000,035 328,063,117 101,224,246 - 1,143,287,398
HRESHEFERERERREAHE Assets available to meet all of the liabilities and to cover outstanding loan

commitments include cash, balances with banks and central bank, items in the
course of collection and exchange fund bills; and placements with banks, In the
normal course of business, a proportion of customer loans contractually
repayable within one year will be extended. The portfolio of marketable
securities held provides further reserves to meet unexpected cash outflows.

HRBZHREAREHS - FHFE
B ReRITROR > R URAUBR
TR EE SR R E R
- PRIEREHEFRE > —8S
BHBEE B FLAN 2 PR
WEE - A 2 THESSES
HI B Je TREASE & I t BRI 3R 4
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Financial Risk Management (Continned)

3.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Off-balance sheet items

3] The Group
LI
No later than fREIHA O HEgE
1 year Indefinite Total
HK$ HK$ HKS
F20174£12H 318 At 31 December 2017
HERURIE Loan commitments 19,961,312 - 19,961,312
ERE > BB ER M Bt Guarantees, acceptances and other
financial facilities
- ot =R - Acceptances 398,622 - 398,622
- TR R R E R - Guarantees and standby letters
of credit 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
- TREE B pE R IR - Documentary and commerciat
letters of credit 1,229,682 - 1,229,682
L Total 25,589,616 - 25,589,616
2016612831 H At 31 December 2016
ERORE Loan commitments 5,641,898 - 5,641,898
iR SRR B e Guarantees, acceptances and other
financial facilities
- ZEEE R - Acceptances 37,516 - 37.516
- EREERERERR - Guarantees and standby Ietters
of credit 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
-  [RERmEEER - Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 1,105,832 - 1,105,832
b ] Total 10,785,246 - 10,785,246
(FH) ERUKE {a)  Loan commitments
BEEREENTFEERE G The dates of the contractual amounts of the Group's off-balance sheet financial
EEHrEERERENEETE instruments, that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities, are
ZENEEOQHEEEND e summarised in the above table.
B -

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities

(L) BBEREEMAEGE T (b)

Financial guarantees are also included above based on the conditions existed at the
reporting date as to what contractual payments are required.

MEBRATRENEEDCHE
FLAREE GEMTRER BN
FURE B EFRHEPS »
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.4 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

(a}

(b)

38

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities not presented at
fair value in the Group's statement of financial position are
estimated as follows:

(i} Placements with banks

The fair value of overnight placements to banks is their
carrying amount. Fixed interest-bearing placements are
maturing within one year from the end of the reporting
period and their carrying value approximates fair value.

(i} Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers are net of provisions for
impairment and bear interest at a floating rate and their
carrying value approximates fair value.

(iii) Deposits from subsidiaries and other customers

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity,
which includes non-interest bearing deposits, is the amount
repayable on demand. The fair value of those balances
bearing interest at a floating rate is their carrying value,
Fixed interest-bearing deposits from subsidiaries and other
customers are maturing within one year from the end of the
reporting period and their carrying value approximates fair
value.

Fair value hierarchy

HKFRS 13 specifies a hierarchy of valuation technigues based on
whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or
unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained
from independent sources; unobservable inputs reflect the Group's
market assumptions. These two types of inputs have created the
following fair value hierarchy:

- Level I - Quoted prices (unadjusted)} in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as price} or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices).

- Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or hability that are not hased on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when
available. The Group considers relevant and observabic market
prices in its valuations where possible.
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Financial Risk Maragement (Continued)
3.4 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(b)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Assets measured at fair value :

The Group
E1k AR IR L
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
HKS$ HK$ HK3% HK$
31 December 2017
Recurring fair value
measurement
Available-for sale investment
securities - equity 17,163,860 - - 17,163,860
Investment properties - - 311,400,000 311,400,000
17,163,860 - 311,400,000 328,563,860
31 December 2016
Recurring fair value
rueasurement
Available-for sale investment
securities - equity 39,018,685 - - 39,018,685
Investment properties - - 284,700,000 284,700,000
39,018,685 - 284,700,600 323,718,685

There were no significant transfers of financial assets between level 1 and level 2 fair value
hierarchy classifications,

Valuation basis of investment properties

The investment properties were revalued as at 3t December 2017 and 31 December 2016 on
the basis of its open market value, which was derived by the following valuation
methodologies by Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited, an independent firm
of qualified property valuers.

- Sales evidence on the market on comparable properties around the time of valuation; and

- Capitalization of the income potential using appropriate capitalisation rate, which was
derived from analysis of sale transactions and the valuer’s interpretation of prevailing investor
requirements or expectations,

The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning balances for fair value
measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for the year ended 31 December 2017:

2017 2016
HKS HKS$
At January 284,700,000 281,800,000
Gain form fair value adjustments on investment properties 26,700,000 2,900,000
At 31 December 311,400,000 284,700,000
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)
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{c)

3.5

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Fair value of assets and liabilities not measured at fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments carried at cost
or amortized cost are not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2016,

Accordingly, no disclosure on the fair values and the level of the fair value
hierarchy are disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

Capital mapagement

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept
than the 'equity' on the face of consolidated statement of financial position,
are:
- to comply with the capital requirements under the Banking (Capital}
Rules of the Banking Ordinance and the authorization criteria of
licensed bank under the Banking Ordinance;

- to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as 2 going concern, so that
it can continue to provide returns for sharcholders;

- to maintain a strong capital base to support the Group's stability and its
business development; and

- to employ capital in an efficient and risk based approach with an aim
to optimize risk adjusted return to the shareholders.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored daily by
the Group's management, employing techniques based on the Banking
(Capital) Rules. The required information is filed with the HKMA on a
quarterty basis.

The HKMA requires each bank or banking group to maintain a capital
adequacy ratio (“CAR™), defined as the ratio of total regulatory capital (as
defined under the Banking (Capital) Rules) to the risk-weighted assets, at
or above the minimum as set out in section 3A of the Banking (Capital)
Rules. The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2017 are computed
on both solo and consolidated basis of the Bank as specified by the HKMA
under section 3C of the Banking (Capital) Rules for its regulatory
purposes, and are in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules.

The Bank's policy on capital adequacy as approved by the Board of
Directors sets out the objectives, policies and process for managing capital
and assessing the adequacy of capital to support its current and future
activities. The Bank reviews its policy on capifal adequacy on a regular
basis to ensure all necessary changes are reflected it the policies,

CAR is monitored by the Bank on « daily basis to ensure compliance with
all relevant statutory requirements and regulatory guidelines governing the
banking business.
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Capital management (Continued)

Other than statutory CAR, an internal trigger CAR is applied for control purposes. If
the actual CAR falls below the trigger ratio, the case would immediately be reported
to the Board and the HKMA, and remedial action will be taken.

In addition, the Bank will assess the impact on its capital when there are new
products, new investments, or any proposed significant transactions.

Semi-annual stress tests are also performed to assess the potential impact of extreme
business conditions on capital and to develop strategies to mitigate the adverse effects
where necessary.

The table below summarises the ratios and the composition of regulatory capital of
the Group as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, The Bank complied with
all of the externally imposed capital requirements by the HKMA throughout the year,

2017 2016
66.19%

Common equity tier 1 capital ratio 63.39%

63.39% 66.15%

88.60%

Tier 1 capital ratio

Total capital ratio 85.97%

1.25%

Capital conservation buffer ratio 0.625%

The above capital ratios represent the consolidated ratios of the Bank computed in
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules as at 31 December 2017 and 2016. In
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules, the Bank has adopted the “ basic
approach™ for the caleulation of the risk weighted assets for credit risk and the“basic
indicator approach” for the calculation of operational risk. The Bank has been
exempted from the calculation of risk weighted assets for market risk.

The Bank is required to calculate and report its capital ratios on the consolidated
position based on the regulatory scope of consolidated figures in addition to the
Bank's solo position based on its unconsolidated level figures. The basis of
consolidation for accounting purpose differs from the basis of consolidation for
regulatory purposes, under which only Success Land Enterprises Limited, Golden
Wisdom Development Limited and Team Gold Investment Limited are included as
subsidiaries in the consolidated Group for regulatory purposes.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.5

Capital management (Continued)

The capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above capital ratios
and reported to the Hong Kong Monetary Authority is analysed as follows :

2017 2016
HK3°000 HK$'000
Common equity tier 1 (CET1) capital
CET1 capital instruments 264,987 264,987
Retained earnings 381,884 340,372
Disclosed reserves 9,859 9,882
656,730 615,241
1L.ess : Cumulative fair value gains arising from
revaluation of land and buildings (262,045) (235,408}
Regulatory reserve for general banking risk (1,800 {1,800)
Total CET! capital after deductions 392,885 378,033
Additional Tier | capital - -
Total Tier I capital after deductions 392,885 378,033
Tier 2 capital
Reserve attributable to fair value gains on revaluation
of tand and buildings 138,176 126,189
Regulatory reserve for general banking risk 1,800 1,800
135,976 127,989
Less ; Tier 2 capital deductions - -
Total Tier 2 capital after deductions 139,976 127,989
Total capital base 532,861 506,022

Critical Accounting Estimates, and Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

(a)

Distinction between investment properties and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property gqualifies as investment property by
considering whether the property generates cash flows largely independent of its
other assets. Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows that are atiributable not
only to property but also to other assets used in the production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these portions can be sold
separately (or leased out separately under a finance lease}, the Group accounts for the
portions separately. If the portions cannot be sold separately, the property is
accounted for as investnent property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgment is applied in determining whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as investment property. The Group considers cach property
separately in making its judgment.
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Critical Accounting Estimates, and Judgments in Applying Accounting

Policies (Continued)

(»)

©

(d)

()

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair values of investment properties are estimated based on the
valuation made by an independent professional valuer on an open market
basis at a valuation date. The fair values are assessed in accordance with
the HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties (2012 Edition) published by
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The contractual rental income and
the expected future market rental income after allowing for outgoings and
maintenance requirements are capitalised at observed market yields. The
principal assumptions underlying the estimation of market value are those
related to: the receipt of contractual rentals; expected future market rentals;
rent free periods; maintenance requirements; and observed market yields.
Changes in the assumptions used in the valuation would affect the fair
value of investment properties.

In addition, the values are also assessed by reference to comparable sales
transactions around the valuation date as reported in the relevant market at
similar locations. Appropriate adjustments have been made on the values
of the subject properties for relevant factors, such as location difference,
building age, time of transaction, shop frontage, floor levels and pedestrian
flow, efc.

Long-service payments

The present value of the long service payments depends on a number of
factors that are determined on a number of assumptions. The assumptions
used in determining the provision for long-service payments include the
discount rate, the tate of staff pay adjustments, and the probability of staff
entitlement for long service payments. Any changes in these assumptions
will impact the carrying amount of long-service payments obligations.

The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each
reporting period upon referencing the interest rates on government bonds.
This is the interest rate that should be used to determine the present value
of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the
fong-service payments obligations.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 to determine when available-
for-sale investrments are impaired.

The Group defermines that available-for-sale equity investments are
impaired when there hag been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value below its cost, This determination of what is significant or prolonged
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates among
other factors, the volatility in share price. In addition, objective evidence
of impairment may be deterioration in the financial health of the investes,
industry and sector performance, changes in technology, and operational
and financing cash flows.

Determination of deferred taxation

In determining the deferred tax positions of the Group and of the Bank,
significant judgment is required in determining the tax implications of the
transactions entered by the Group. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that it could be recoverable. Deferred tax
liabilities are recognised at full.

Management reviewed all the transactions entered by the Group and by the
Bank, and all deferred tax assets (to the extent recoverable) and deferred
tax liabilities are recognised in the consolidated financial statements
except for the certain tax losses carry forwards that the realisation of
related tax benefit through firture taxable profits is not probable.
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Net Interest Income

Interest income
Cash and balances and placements with banks

Loans and advances to customers

Intterest expense
Deposits from customers
Others

2017 2016

HK$ HKS
5,454,103 3,508,027
6,152,176 5,833,670
11,606,279 9,341,697
782,537 666,028
2,009 1,458
784,546 667,486

The interest income and interest expenses are for financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss.

Other Operating Income

Fees and commission income
- Credit related fees and commissions

- Other fees
Less : Fees and commission expense
- Other fees and commission paid

Net fees and commission income

Net gain from trading of foreign currency

Gross rental income from investment properties

Less : rental outgoings

Aljr-conditioning and management fees
Dividend income from:
- listed available-for-sale investments

- unlisted available-for-sale investments
Safe deposit box rental

Exchange differences

Others

Operating Expenses

Staff costs {Note B)

Depreciation

Auditors' remuneration

Premises and equipment expenses

Other operating expenses
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2017 2016
HKS HKS
32,875 45,559
140,392 96,907
(32,836) (26,146)
140,431 116,320
4,467 28,232
8,824,875 8,830,816
(3T4,157)  (3,045,355)
5,450,718 5,785,461
1,888,879 2,104,958
1,004,422 1,455,231
8,160 8,160
5,138,034 4,763,679
68,332 (11,240)
380,345 360,425
8,488,172 8,681,213
14,083,788 14,611,226
2017 2016
HKS HKS
12,977,566 13,434,855
825,879 822,004
858,520 748,000
1,389,564 1,443,627
3,583 004 3,600,643
19,634,533 20,139,129
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Staff Costs

2017 2016
HK$ HKS$
Wages and salaries 12,617,154 12,521,930
Accrual for annual leave and long-service payment (206,081) 319,418
Pension cost - defined contribution plan (Note) 565,893 593,507

12,977,566 13,434,855

Staff costs include directors' emoluments (Note 23).

Note
There were no forfeited contributions utilized during the year (2016: Nil) nor available
at the year-end to reduce future contributions.

Contributions totating HK$74,581 (2016: HK$81,069) were payable to the defined
contribution plan at the year end.

Income Tax Expense

Hong Kong income tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profit for the year.

2017 2016
HK$ HES
Current income tax - Hong Kong profits tax 137,649 100,170
Deferred income tax charge (Note 19} 498,967 74,838
Income tax expense 636,616 175,008

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would
arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows :

2017 2016

HKS$ HKS$

Profit before income tax 42,212,037 7,034,362

Tax calculated at tax rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) 6,964,986 1,160,670

Income not subject to tax (6,271,231) (890,888)

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 8,882 3,371

Other (12,818) (2,505)

Adjustment in respect of prior vears (53,203} (95,640)

Income tax expense 636,616 175,008
Cash and Balances with Banks

2017 2016

HK$ HKS$

Cash in hand 4,079,908 2,748,597

Balances with banks and central bank 430,354,907 541,073,943

Placements with banks maturing within one month 400,000,000 170,000,000

834,434 815 713,822,540

Placements with Banks Maturing Between One and Twelve Months
2017 2016

HKS © HKS

Placements with banks maturing between one and

twelve months 427,191,024

460,343,013
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Loans and Advances to Customers and Gther Accounts

2017 2016
HKS$ HK$
Loans and advances to individuals
- Overdrafts 2,306,768 2,017,317
- Mortgages 6,059,116 8,541,722
Loans and advances to corporate entities
- Investment companies 153,089,991 148,536,977
- SMEs 800,051 1,454,972
Loans and advances to customers 162,255,926 160,550,988
Accrued interest 1,397,123 909,028
Other accounts 1,919,496 6,735,078
Loans and advances to customers and other
accounts 165,572,545 168,195,094

Included in loans and advances to customers are trade bills amounted to HK$800,051
(2016:HK$1,454,972).

There were no impaired loans or non-performing loans at 31 December 2017 (2016
Nil).

The Group accepted listed securities and deposits at fair value of HK$19,426,340 and
HES$Nil (2016: HK$12,967,900 and HK$Nil) respectively as collateral for loans, which
it is permitted to sell or re-pledge in the event of default by the borrower, of which no
securities (2016: Nil) were re-pledged or lent to third parties.

Available-for-Sale Investments

2017 2016
HK$ HKS
Equity securitics
- listed in Hong Kong, at market value 17,098,355 38,960,219
- listed outside Hong Kong, at market value 65,505 58,466
- urlisted, at cost 136,000 136,000
17,299,860 39,154,685
Available-for-sale investments are analysed by
categories of issuers as follows :
- Banks and other financial institutions 13,887,050 15,386,769
- Corporates 107,310 10,286,916
« Others 3,305,500 13,481,000
17,299,860 39,154,685
The movement in available-for-sale investments is summarised as follows ;
2017 2016
HK$ HK$
At 1 Jaruary 39,154,685 38,804,166
Gain from changes in fair value {(Note 21} 8,278,071 1,275,672
Additions 365,464 346,547
Disposals {30,498,360) {1,361,700)
At 31 December 17,299,860 39,154,685
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Name Place of

incorporation

FAMIREET B
RE Hong Kong
TSB Property

Management

Limited

WEeEEARL BE

H] Hong Kong
Success Land

Enterprises

Limited

SHBEERN BHE

j Hong Kong
Golden Wisdom

Development

Limited

BEREERL TH

H] Hong Kong
Team Gold

Investment

Limited

R
Principal
activities

YiskEE
Property
management

ERE
Investment
holding

Ei'q ti]
Investment
holding

REHE

Investment
holding

Subgidiaries

Details of the subsidiaries at 31 December 2017 and 2016, which are held by the Bank

directly, are as follows :

FRERTRERRE
Particulars of issued
shares held

10,0008 ¥ B
EEHSE T
10,000 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each

R R
I

2 ordinary shares of
HK31 each

22,900,000R% S i@ A%
TR R T
22,900,000 ordinary
shares of HKS! cach

19,800,000 A4 RY
GAEHHEEIT
19,800,000 ordinary
shares of HK$1 each
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TELRRE

Interest
held

100%

100%

100%

100%

2017412 H31H
31 December 2017

201645128 31H
31 December 2016

WREEE R WENE i
Total assets Total eguity Total assets  Total equity
HKS HKE HKS HKS$
678,722 388,886 624,251 261,300
2 2 2 2

31,267,654 30,936,497

27,143,169 26,878,068

28,789,898 28,466,039

25,005,524 24,737,758
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Cost or Deemed cost at valuation

At 1 January 2017
Additions

Write-off / disposat
At 31 December 2017

At I January 2016
Additions
Write-off / disposal

At 31 December 2016

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

At 1 January 2017

Charge for the year

Write-off / disposal
At 31 December 2017

At 1 January 2016
Charge for the year
Write-off / disposal
At 31 December 2016

Net book value
At 31 December 2017

At 31 December 2016

Tk B, EER ]

ity

Furniture,

fixtures and
Bank premises equipment Total
HKS HK$ HK$
117,618,203 13,699,274 131,317,477
- 227,056 227,056
- (280,057) (280,057)
117,618,203 13,646,273 131,264,476
117,618,203 13,709,400 131,327,603
“ 56,559 56,559
- (66,685) {66,585)
117,618,203 13,699,274 131,317,477
48,539,061 9,900,708 58,439,769
388,630 437,249 825,879
- (218,224} (218,224)
48,927,691 10,119,733 59,047.424
48,150,432 9,513,590 57,664,022
388,629 433,375 822,004
. (46,257) (46,257
48539061 9,900,708 58,439,769
68,690,512 3,526,540 72,217,052
69,079,142 3,798,566 72,877,708

The analysis of cost or deemed cost at directors' or vatuer's valuation of the above assets

is as follows :

At 31 December 2017
At cost

At deemed cost at directors'
valuation in 1994

Deemed cost at valuer's valuation
2012

At 31 December 2016
At cost

At deemed cost at directors'
valuation in 1994

Deemed cost at valuer's valuation
2012
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Furniture,

fixtures and
Bank premises gquipment Total
HK$ HK3$ HES
- 13,646,273 13,646,273
114,618,203 - 114,618,203
3,000,060 - 3,000,000
117,618,203 13,646,273 131,264,476
- 13,699,274 13,699,274
114,618,203 - 114,618,203
3,000,000 - 3,000,000
117,618,203 13,699,274 131,317,477
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Property, Plant and Eguipment (Continued)

The 1994 valuation of bank premises refers to directors' revaluation in December
1994 based on independent professional valuations on an open market basis.

Bank premises transferred from investment properties in 2012 were stated based
on valuation performed on open market basis as at 28 September 2012 by an
independent firm of professionally qualified valuers, Savills Valuation and
Professional Services Limited.

The Group’s bank premises at their net book values are analysed as follows :

2017 2016
In Hong Kong, held on : HK$ HKS$
Leases of over 50 years 68,690,512 69,079,142
Investment Properties

2017 2016

HKS HK$
Beginning of the vear 284,700,000 281,800,000
Fair value gaing 26,700,000 2,900,000

234,700,000

End of the year 311,400,000

The investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2017 and 2016 by
independent, professionally qualified valuers, Savills Valuation and Professional
Services Limited. Valuations were based on the current market prices.

The Group's unprovided contractual obligations for future repairs and
maintenance as at 31 December 2017 are disclosed in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements (2016: Nil).

In the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, direct operating expenses
include HK$114,275 (2016: HK$104,540) relating to investment properties that
were unlet,

The Group's interests in investment properties at their net book values are
analysed as follows :

2017 2016
In Hong Kong, held on HKS HKS$
Leases of over 50 years 311,400,000 284,700,000
Deposits from Customers

2017 2016

HK$ HK$
Demand deposits and current accounts 143,578,545 82,903,354
Savings deposits 847,078,392 766,552,642
Time, call and notice deposits 144,294,011 167,474,341

1,134,950,948 1,016,930,337
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Other Liabilities and Pravisions

2017 2016

HK$ HKS

Rental deposits 8,293,677 7,641,211
Accrued interest 170,378 154,949
Accounts and other payables 10,239,016 15,704,202
18,703,071 23,500,362

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the
same fiscal authority. The offset amnounts are as follows:

2017 2016
HK$ HK$

Deferred tax assets :

~ Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more
than 12 months {6,960,371) (7,501,973}

Deferred tax liabilities ;

- Deferred tax liabilities to be incurred after
more than 12 months 12,457,440 12,500,075

Net deferred tax liabilities 5,497,069 4,998,102

The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows :

2017 2016
HKS$ HK$
At 1 January 4,998,102 4,923,264
Recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (Note 9) 498 067 74,838
At 31 December 5,497,069 4,998,102

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows :
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Deferred Income Tax (Continued)

Deferred tax Habilities

ST EEES L]
Fair value gains Total
HKS$ HKS

12,033,654 12,560,286

(14,082) (60,211

12,019,572 12,500,075

(14,277) (42,635)

12,005,295 12,457 440

Atk k]
Other Total
HKS HKS

135,561 7,637,022

(1,948) (135,049)

133,613 7,501,973

1,807 (541,602)

RN
Accelerated tax
depreciation
HKS$
At 1 January 2016 526,632
Recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (46,129)
At 31 December 2016 480,503
Recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income {28,358)
At 31 December 2017 452,145
Deferred tax assets
g
Tax Josses
HKS
At 1 January 2016 7,501,461
Recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (133,101)
At 31 December 2016 7,368,360
Recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (543,409)
At 31 December 2017 6,824,951

155,420 6,960,371

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry forwards to the extent that the realisation

of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.

Share Capital

20175612431 H 20165E12H318
31 December 2017 31 December 2016
Re® gy
No. of Shares HK$ No. of Shares HEKS
Ordinary shares issued
and fully paid : 310,000,000 310,000,000 310,000,000 310,000,000
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Reserves

2017

At | January 2017

Suarplus on revatuation of
available-for-sale investments

Transfer from revaluation reserve
to refained earnings on
depreciation of bank premises’

Profit for the year

Transfer from investment
revluation reserve to statement of
comprehensive income on
disposal of available-for-sale
investments

At 31 December 2017

Representing :
Bank and subsidianies

EHE

HAsE iy ZiE HE bR

EiEE  EGRE s 1 BAF kem
Other
properties  Investment

revaluation  revaluation General  Regulatory Retained
reserve’ reserve’ reserve’ reserve’ £AINiNgs Total
HKS HEK3 HKS HK3 HKS HES$
2,303,442 5,168,844 610,257 1,800,000 340,622,876 350,505,419
- 8,278,071 - - - 8,278,071
(64,091) - - - 64,091 -
- - - - 41,575,421 41,575,421
- (8,237,761) - - - (8,237,761)
2,239,351 5,209,154 610,257 1,800,000 382,262,388 392,121,150
2,239,351 5,209,154 610,257 1,800,000 382,262,388 392,121,150

—_—

"The other properties revaluation reserve represents the increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of bank premises prior to 30
September 1995 as stated in the accounting policy for property, plant and equipment (Note 2.11},

*The investment revaluation reserve represents the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale investments until such
financial assets are derecognised or impaired as stated in the accounting pelicy for financial assets {Note 2,5},

 The general reserve comprises previous years' transfer from retained eamnings and is distributable,

“The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision purpose.
Movements in the reserve are made directly throngh retained earnings and in consuitation with the HKMA.

5This is net of deferred taxation on the difference betwesn the actual depreciation on premises and depreciation based on the historical cost
of the premises of HK$12,6635 (2016 : HK$12,665).
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Reserves (Continued)
2016

At 1 January 2016

Surplus on revaluation of
available-for-sale investments

Transfer from revaluation
reserve to retained earnings on

depreciation of bank premises®
Transfer to regulatory reserve

Profit for the year

Transfer from investment
revluation reserve to statement
of comprehensive income on
disposal of available-for-sale
investments

At 31 December 2016

Representing :
Bank and subsidiaries

Croup
Hihnze e 8 iyl gk
ELGE  EfEEE A ET-N B fawm
Other
properties  Investment
revaluation  revaluation  General Regulatory Retained
reserve’ reserve®  reserve’ reserve’ carnings Total
HKS HKS HKS HKS$ HK3 HKS
2,367,534 4,898,596 610,257 1,700,000 333,799,430 343375817
- 1,275,672 - - - 1,275,672
(64,092) - - - 64,092 -
- - - 100,000 {100,000) -
- - - - 6,859,354 6,859,354
- (1,005,424} - - - {1,005,424)
2,303,442 5,168,844 610,257 1,800,000 340,622,876 350,505,419
2,303,442 5,168,844 610,257 1,800,000 340,622,876 350,505,419

'The other properties revaluation reserve represents the increases in the carrying amount arising on revatuation of bank premises prior
to 30 September 1995 as stated in the accounting policy for property, plant and equipment {Note 2.11).

*The investment revaluation reserve represents the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale investments until such
financial assets are derecognised or impaired as stated in the accounting policy for financial assets (Note 2.5).

*The general reserve comprises previous years' transfer from retained earnings and is distributable.

*The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision

purpose. Movements in the reserve are made directly through retained earnings and in consultation with the HKMA.

This is net of deferred taxation on the difference between the actual depreciation on premises and depreciation based on the
historical cost of the premises of HK$12,665 (2016: HK$12,665).
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Notes To Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(a)} Reconciliztion of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities

2017 2016
HK$ HKS
Operating profit 5,270,988 3,146,308
Dividend income from available-for-sale
investments (1,012,582) (1,463,391)
Depreciation 825,879 822,004
Decrease / (increase) int accrued interest and other
accounts 4,327.487 (5,692,214)
Decrease in other Habilities ard provisions (4,797,291 (1,686,028)
(Increase) / decrease in advances to custormers (1,704,938) 5,463,046
Increase in deposits from customers 118,020,611 41,391,624
Decrease / (increase} in placements with banks with
original maturity over 3 months 34,612,241 (14,813,634)
Income tax paid (149,432) (401,998
Net cash inflow from operating activities 155,392,963 26,765,717
Cash flows from operating activities included:-
- Interest received 11,118,184 9,216,982
- Interest paid 769,117 639,754

{b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the
following balances with less than three months' maturity from the date of acquisition.

2017 2016
HKS HKS$
Cash in hand (Note 10} 4,075,908 2,748,597
Balances with banks and central bank (Note 1{} 430,354,907 541,073,943
Placements with banks with original maturity
within 3 months 602,486,350 304,722,120
1,036,921,165 848,544,660
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Benefits and Interests of Directors (Disclosures Required by Section 383 of the Hong Keong

Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and Companies {Disclosure of Information about

Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G)

{a) Directors' emoluments and retirement benefits

2017 2016
HK$ HK$
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid to
or receivable by directors of the Bank during
the year in respect of their services as directors
were as follows:
Fees 384,000 384,000
The aggregate amounts of emoluments and
retirement benefits paid to or receivable by
directors of the Bank during the year in respect
of their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Bank or its
subsidiary undertakings were as follows:
Salary 1,516,680 1,462,620
Employer's Contribution to Retirement Scheme 75,834 73,335
1,592,514 1,535,955
1,976,514 1,919,955

(b} Loans to directors and controlled body corporates by directors
Particulars of loans made to directors and controlled hody corporates by directors are as
follows:
2017 2016
HKS HKS
Aggregate amount of loans outstanding at the
end of the vear 2,820,217 6,702,833
Maximum aggregate amount of loans during
the year 6,718,676 7,941,423

All loans to directors and controlled body corporates by directors are granted on values not
greater and on term not more favourable than to borrowers of the same financial standing
but unconnected with the Bank.
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Related-Party Transactions

A number of banking transactions were entered into with related parties in the
normal course of business. These include the extension of credit facilities and deposit
taking. For deposits taken and credit facilities extended, the interest rates charged are
under terms and conditions that would normally apply to customers of comparable
standing.

The following is a summary of significant related party transactions entered into with
key management which include directors, relatives and companies controlled or
significantly influenced by them in addition to those disclosed in note 23, which
were carried out in the normal course of the Group's business ;

2017 2016
HKS HKS

Loans
Average balance during the year 93,807,437 80,398,334
Qutstanding as at end of year 96,612,458 88,958,907
Interest income 4,700,091 4,067,571

The loans granted to related parties during the year are collaterised by properties,
shares in listed companies and deposits. The fair value of these mortgaged properties
and shares in listed companies as at 31 December 2017 were HK$365,000,000 and
HK$19,426,340 (2016: HK$347,800,000 and HK$12,967,900) respectively. No
provisions have been made in respect of loans advanced to related parties (2016:
Nil).

2017 2016
HK$ HK$
Deposits
Average balance during the year 1,040,527,109 962,891,236
Outstanding as at end of year 1,098,292,632 977,282,134
Interest expense 755,071 666,062
Contingent Habilities and commitments
contract amount
Direct credit substitutes 4,300,000 4,000,000
Trade-related contingencies 1,628,304 1,143,348
Other commitments with an original maturity
of under 1 year or which are unconditionally
cancellable 19,959,238 5,628,213
Property management fee income {(note (1)) 689,083 680,395
Property rental income {note {ii}) 4,837,234 4,765,530

Notes ;

(i}  Property management fee income included fee income charged on the property
managed by the Group on an actual costs incurred basis and management fee
charged on an arm's length basis for premises leased to companies controlled
by dircctors.

(i) Property rental income was charged on an arm's length basis for premises
leased to companies controlled by directors.
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Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

(a)

(b)

(e}

(d)

Credit commitments

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each significant class of
contingent liabilities and commitment, and the aggregate credit risk weighted amount :

2007 2016
HKS$ HK$
Contract amount
Direct credit substitutes 4,000,000 4,000,000
Trade-related contingencies 1,628,304 1,143,348
Other commitments with an original maturity
of under 1 year or which are unconditionally
cancellable 19,961,312 5,641,898
25,589,616 10,785,246
Credit risk weighted amount 4,325 661 4,228,670

Operating lease commitments - the Group as lessor

The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases:

2017 2016
HKS$ HX$

Land and buildings
- not later than one year 9,039,480 4,716,362
- later than one year but not later than five years 3,518,113 1,671,145
12,557,593 6,387,507

The Group leases out investment properties {(Note 16} under operating lease
arrangements, with leases typically for a period from one to three years. The terms of
the ieases generally require the tepants to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the prevailing market conditions. None of the

leases includes contingent rentals.

Capital commitments

The Group has capital expenditure amounted to HK$999,560 contracted for the
replacement of an old Hft with a new one which is expected to be carried out and
completed in the financial year 2018 but not recognized as Habilities as 31 December
2017 (2016: HK$Nil). The capital expenditure would be capitalized as property, plant
and equipment upon the completion of the new lift.

Repairs and maintenance: investment propertics
The Group has contractual obligation for future repairs and maintenance of lifts and

not recognized as a liability as at 31 December 2017 of HK31,743,600 (2016:
HK$Nil),
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Statement of Finaneial Position of the Bank as at 31 December 2017

Assets
Cash and balances with banks

Placements with banks maturing between one

and twelve months

Loans and advances fo customers and other

accounts
Available-for-sale investments
Investments in subsidiaries

Property, plant and equipment

investment properties

Total Assets

Liabilities
Deposits from

- Subsidiaries
- Other customers

Other liabilities and provisions

Deferred tax liabilities

Total Liabilities

Equity
Share capital

Reserves

Total Equity

Fidak 0VAEIZH3LE 20168212511 H
Note 3 December 2617 31 December 2016
HKS HKS

834,434,815 713,822,540

460,343,013 427,191,024

165,484,275 168,128,804

17,299,860 39,154,685

14 42,710,002 42,710,002
72,217,052 72,877,708

257,000,000 234,000,000

1,849,489,017 1,697,884,763

4,591,202 31,651,486

1,134,950,948 1,016,930,337

17,822,008 22,554,516

5,497,069 4,998,102

1,162,861,317 1,048,134,441

310,000,000 310,000,000

27 376,627,700 339,750,322
686,627,700 649,750,322

Approved and aunthorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 March 2018.

MA CHING YUK
MA CHING KUEN,ALFRED
MA CHING YEUNG, PHILIP

MA CHING HANG, PATRICK

Total Equity and Liabilities
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Reserves of the Bank

2017

At 1 January 2017

Surplus on revaluation of
available-for-sale investments

Transfer from revaluation
reserve to retained earnings on

depreciation of bank premises’

Profit for the year

Transfer from investment
revalution reserve to statement
of comprehensive income on
disposal of available-for-sale
investments

At 31 December 2017

BT
Bank
H i wE £ ERE HeR
EiGEEE  EEEE fehfig* R e
Other
properties  Investment
revaluation revaluation  General Regulatory Retained
reserve' reserve’  reserve’ reserve’ eatnings Total
HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS
2,303,442 5,168,844 610,257 1,800,000 329,867,779 339,750,322
- 8,278,071 - - - 8,278,071
(64,091) - - - 64,091 -
- - - - 36,837,068 36,837,068
- (8,237,761) - - - (8,237,761)
2,239,351 5,209,154 610,257 1,800,000 366,768,938 376,627,700

"The other propertics revaluation reserve represents the increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of bank premises
prior 10 30 September 1993 as stated in the accounting policy for property, plant and equipment (Note 2.11).

*The investment revaluation reserve represents the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale investments mntil
such financial assets are derecognised or impaired as stated in the accounting policy for financial assets (Note 2.5).

*The general reserve comprises previous years' transfer from retained earnings and is distributable.

“The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision
purpose. Movements in the reserve are made directly through retained eamings and in consultation with the HKMA.

>This is net of deferred taxation on the difference between the actual depreciation on premises and depreciation based on the
historical cost of the premises of HK$12,665 (2016 : HK$12,665).
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Reserves of the Bank (Continued)

2016
;T
Bank _
Hns it Eim BE Eak
EEEE EEEE  BE @ EXES L
Other
properties  Investment
revaluation  revaluation  General Regulatory Retained
reserve' reserve”  reserve’  reserve carmings Total
HK$ HK$ _HK$ HKS HKS$ HKS
At I January 2016 2,367,534 4,898,596 610,257 1,700,000 324,548,082 334,124,469
Surplug on revaluation of
available-for-sale investments - 1,275,672 - - - 1,275,672
Transfer from revaluation
reserve to retained earnings on
depreciation of bank premises’ (64,092) - - “ 64,092 -
Transfer to regulatory reserve - - “ 100,000 (100,000) -
Profit for the year - - - - 5,355,605 5,355,605
Transfer from investment
revalution reserve to statement of
comprehensive income on
disposal of available-for-sale
investments - (1,005,424) - - - (1,005,424)
At 31 December 2016 2,303,442 5,168,844 610257 1,800,000 329,867,779 339,750,322

"The other properties revaluation reserve represents the increases in the carrying amoumt arising on revaluation of bank premises
prior to 30 September 1995 as stated in the accounting policy for property, plant and equipment (Note 2.11).

*The investment revaluation reserve represents the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale investments until
such financial assets are derecognised or impaired as stated in the accounting policy for financial assets (Note 2.5).

*The general reserve comprises previous years' transfer from retained sarnings and is distributable.

“The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision
purpose. Movements in the reserve are made directly through retained eamings and in consultation with the HKMA.

This is net of deferred taxation on the difference between the actual depreciation on premises and depreciation based on the
historical cost of the premises of HK$12,665 (2016: HK$12,665).
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TR R 5{&@%&) SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)
FHitEER B s The following information is disclosed as part of the accompanying information to the financial
BERTFER B S o statements and does not form part of the financial statements.
U e
b AR Liguidity Ratio
2017
AETHE SRR Liquidity maintenance ratio 80.79%
2016
eSS R E Liquidity maintenance ratio 83.65%

TREDE SRR LB T RB IR
OB BRIFTERRAR
FRMREEAREAZEH
PR EREHLRMHE
PALERDS

SE01TEIZAN BUER
WERTTREZRR RiE
(20165 * #) -

o i vanid

FUTIPE B RIS 3 B AL
PRE MBS SRR 4 10%
BWESQOT

FoTAL:

BTEE
BREE
HEAMR

NG A

ATCEE
HRREE
SN Fi-
s ]

The liquidity maintenance ratio is calculated as the simple average of each calendar month's average
liquidity maintenance ratio for the twelve months of the financial year of the Bank computed in
accordance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.

Non-Bank Mainland Exposures

The Group did not have any non-bank Mainland exposures as at 31 December 2017 {2016 : Nif).

Currency Concentrations

The US dollar net position and the RMB net position, each constitutes more than 10% of the total net
position in all foreign currencies respectively, are reporied as follows :

RIT
Bank
US Dollar Pogition: 2017 2016
HK$ 000 HKS$°000
Equivalent in Hong Kong dollars
Spot assets 10,615 27423
Spot liabilities (9.906) (26,450}
Net long position 709 973
1T
Bank
RMB Position: 2017 2016
HK$°000 HK$ 000
Equivalent in Hong Kong dollars
Spot assets 517 536
Spot liabilities (248) (243)
269 293

Net long position
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4 HEEHEK Loans and Advances o Customers
EERARS B EMEE Gross advances to customers by loan usage
2017 2016
HEHR/ =t
B iE HitgR
ZEE B
Amount Amount
= e covered by HEEE covered by
Gross collateral/ Gross collateral/
advances  other security advances  other security
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$
HEHESEERER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IEem Industrial, commercial and financial
SRR -property investment 50,286,427 59286427 66248799 66,248,799
et it Stockbrokers 2,901,034 2,901,034 2,588,712 2,588,712
BA Individuals
JJEBR TEEEEERE . - -loans for the purchase of residential
PR AZHBEBERITE properties other than flats in
g8 VI EEHBHE, B the Home Ownership Scheme,
BAAh 2 R ER Private Sector Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase Scheme 6,059,116 6,059,116 8,541,722 8,541,722
-EAil -others 2,306,768 2,109,128 2,017,317 2,017,317
HEME Trade finance 800,051 800,051 1,454,972 1,454,972
HHENE Investment companies 90,902,530 90,902,530 79,699,466 79,699,466
162,255,926 162,058,286 160,550,988 160,550,988
5 SIEERE Segmental Information
) BEEED (i} Business activities
BE BT ENERLES The Group operates predominantly in Hong Kong and in two classes of business - cornmercial
s FEEBS RROE B banking and property investment. The commercial banking business includes, inter alia,
HEERTESEDER acceptance of deposit from customers and the provision of lending, trade financing, foreign

exchange, and other credit facilities to customers. Property investment represents interests in
various commercial properties held for rental purposes,

At 31 December 2017, commercial banking and property investment accounted for
HK$1,549,877.358 and HK$311,400,000 of the Group's operating assets respectively (2016:
HK$1,421,242,949 and HK$284,700,000}. For the year ended 31 December 2017, contributions
to the Group's operating income from comemercial banking and property investment, were
HKS$17,190,360 and HK$7,715,161 respectively (2016: HK$15,036,038 and HK$8,249,399
respectively).

(it) Overdue and impaired loans by geographical area

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has no overdue or impaired loans (2016: Nil).
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Segmental Information (Continued}

(iii) International claims

The information as at 31 December on international claims discloses
exposures to foreign counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and is
derived according to the location of the counterparties after taking into
account any transfer of risk.

2017 2016

ERITER ERER SRITEIEE ekt
Banks Total Banks Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HX$'000 HK$'000
860,343 860,343 371,191 377,19
- - 50,000 50,000

860,343 860,343 427,191 427,191

Corporate Governance

In monitoring the operations and the financial soundness of the Group, the
Board has established five specialised committees for handling matters which
require detailed review or in-depth consideration, namely, the Executive
Committee, Credit Committee, Asset and Liability Committee (*ALCO™), Audis
Committee and Remuneration Committee. The Audit Commitiee and the
Remuneration Committee are, respectively, made up of directors who are
independent non-executive directors. Other commiftees are comprised of
Director & General Manager and other directors and senior executives of the
Bank as appointed by the Board.

The Executive Committee handles major matters arising from business and
operational activities, It relieves the full Board from the needs to carry out
detailed review of infornwation and operational activities and also co-ordinates
the work of other Board committees, The Credit Committee, in addition fo its
usual rofe in evaluating credit applications and making credit decisions, also
serves the vital role of monitoring the loan portfolio quality of the Group. The
ALCO oversees the Group's operations relating to interest rate risk, exchange
rate risk and Hquidity risk. In particular, ALCO ensures that the Group has
adequate funds to meet its obligations. The Audit Committee assists the Board
in providing independent review of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process and internal control systems of the Group by working closely with the
Group's internal and external audifors. The Remuneration Committee establishes
policies on the Group's remuneration paid to senior management and key
personnel and monitors their proper implementation.

The Group has complied with the requirements set out in the Supervisory Policy
Marmual entitted "Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorized
Institntions” issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority in all material
aspects,

Capital Structure and Adequacy

The calculation of the capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2017 and 31
Decentber 2016 is based on the Banking (Capital) Rules (“BCR™) effective from
1 January 2014. The capital adequacy ratio represents consolidated ratio of the
Bank computed in accordance with section 3(1) of the BCR.
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Capital Structure and Adequacy (Continged)

The table below presents the balance sheets based on the accounting scope of consclidation
and the regulatory reporting scope respectively as at 31 December 2017,

Consclidated
Statement of
Financial Position
as in published
financial disclosure
statement

Rk BEAHEERE

Under regulatory| 712 BHE
scope of] Cross-
consolidation -{ referenced fo
Bank's Statement! Definition of|
of Financial Capital
Paosition Components

HKS$000

E#Eﬁﬁﬁ#ﬁf{@%ﬁ)ﬁ Cash and balances with banks 834,435 834 435
m—e— - -
%ggﬁiﬂ%mlﬁﬁ{‘ 1Z12{8H i:la;c::zier;:sexf::;néss maturing between 460,343 160343
R B i,;a:lsnz:gd advances to customers and other 165,572 165,550
B ENE Available-for-sale investments 17,300 17,300
BN 2 H Investments in subsidiaries - 10
s - HE R (Property, plant and equipment 72,217 72,217
LA Investment properties 311,400 311,400
B 2 K Tax recoverable 16 10
RESEH Total assets 1,861,277 1,861,265

Deposits from customers

1,134,951

B 1,135,607
HUEER S Other liabilities and provisions 18,703 18,418
AEATHAM Current tax liabilities 5 _
BT ER AR R Deferred tax liabilities 5497 5,497
AEAE Total tiabilities 1,159,156 1,159,522

ﬁﬁ%m

Paid-in share capital 310,000 310,000
HobfdE T Ui et [of which; share capital paid up in cash and
S b A R capitalized from realized 264,987 (1)
BAREA LA revaluation gains of properties
RREN I EER share capital capitalized from
EEFEhEERT unrealized revaluation gains of 45,013 {2}
B properties
Hi s H i Other properties revaluation resteve 2,239 2,239 £}]
EE G Investment revaluation reserve 5210 5,210 (4}
TR General reserve 610 610 5)
EERE Regulatory reserve 1,800 1,800 (6)
EghHy Retained earnings 382,262 381,884 (7N
Hofi : SHEEEYWE jof which: unrealized revaluation gains of 250 806 8
& 4325 investment properties ’ @
HaBgEEER other retained earnings and
122,078
] profits
BEHEISSE Total sharcholders' equity 702,121 701,743
SR ERES Total labilities and shareholders' equity 1,861,277 1,861,265
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Capital Structure and Adeguacy (Continned)

The table below shows the reconciliation of the capital components from balance sheet
based on regulatory reporting scope to the Capital Disclosure Template as at 31 December

2017.

Component of
regulatory capital
reported by the Bank

Cross-referenced to
Bank's Statement of
Financial Position
aboye

HKS 000

Eé‘%@‘ B’JAﬁ%CETi X

Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital

264,987

[

MEEAEREaTIR s E instruments plus any related share premium M
REEF Retained earnings 381,884 )
Disclosed reserves 9,859  (3HAHE)HE)

656,730

Py Ny ==
B e — IR TR B

BARHRELNEREERR

Ireserve for general banking risks eligible for

National specific régulatory adjustments applied to

Collective impairment allowances and regulatory

inclusion in Tier 2 capital

A ff"CETlﬁzm’}“Lﬁ%%Eﬁ National specific regulatory adjustments applied to 263845
EEEEE CET! capital ,
H-r sy (g B EEEHR) |Conulative fair value gains arising from the
wITEEE{ENEESNERLF revaluation of land and buildings (own-use and 262,045 BB
HEWR investment properties)
fﬁ'iﬁﬁﬁ%i% Eﬁﬁ%‘*%fﬁ Regulatory reserve for general banking risks 1,800 ()
’ 263,845
392,885

392,885

1,800

{6)
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EHEREE Tier 2 capital (138,176)
InElEEREt A EEAEY Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising
+Hr sy (g EREA from the revaluation of land and buildings (own-
%) E{TEEEETEESNER use and investment properties) eligible for (138,176)]  [@)H3)H@B)*45%
7 “F{E{gi&ﬁ inclusion in Tier 2 capital
: {138,176)
139.976
532,861




RITEMBRITR (R HRETS BEA0R -
217 12A B A HERR R TTAE
fir » FIFRAT

Capital Structure and Adequacy (Continued)

The Bank has already applied full capital deductions under the BCR. The
Capital Disclosures Template as at 31 December 2017 is shown below,

which is presented in HK$'G00.

2017T4E12 B 31 B 2 B A EIERE

BSOS ERCET R REEEA

Capital Disclosures Template as at 31 December 2017

Directly issued qualifying CET] capital instruments

~

AEEEES

! bl R g ] plus any related share premium 264,987
2R B F Retained earnings 381,884
B E Disclosed reserves 9,859
4 FHRECETI B A R BT A Directly issued capital subject to phase ot from CET] N ticab]
(BT R B ) capital (only applicable to non-foint stock companies) A3 Not applicable
Y e — Minori interests arising from CET1 ital
ERér S R THE A R ST I =05 inéﬁrrignts nilsz:ted by coxlxsilidated bank subsig?:;ies
SIEMCETT B A RBEAN VB RE S -

and held by third parties (amount allowed in CETI

Valuation adjustments

P (EAUERE B A B R (R)

o0 ]

Goodwill (net of associated deferred tax Hability)

S T T (AT A LT A
)

)

Other intangible assets {net of associated deferred tax
Hability)

H| EAUIBR IR H A R TR AR A

f=

Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilities

1

sk

R rE

Cash flow hedge reserve

£ IRBETBE FELARAHE L S W EFHE

2 em

[

Excess of total EL amount over total eligible provisions
under the IRB approach

BifER b SN ENES Gain-on-sale arising from securitization transactions -
4 WAEEEGHNEERAGHNERR Gains and losses due to changes in own credit risk on
PrERdhpnE A EYRA fair valued liabilities -

RS SRS R E (B

Defined benefit pension fund net assets (net of]

15 RIELIREEE) associated deferred tax liabilities) -
PSR ST AN 3 (G Investments in own CET capital instruments (if not

6k EFREBENEEREBEETIRELEAER already netted off paid-in capital on reported balance .
IR sheet)

V|G ELCET I E A RS Reciprocal cross-holdings in CET1 capital instruments -

REBEERSFHENER SN ERR
B EMETHCETI RAERBNEEARTS
TR (B 0B iE 2 B

above 1 0% threshold)

Insignificant capital investments in CETl capital
ingtruments issued by financial sector entities that are
outside the scope of regulatory consclidation (amount

19| B B TTRYCET AR B EXR A&
BB 10%P9iE 2 B

Significant capital invesiments in CETl capital
instruments issued by financial sector enfities that are
outside the scope of regulatory consolidation {(amount
above 10% threshold)
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Capital Structure and Adequacy (Continued)

N Mortgage servicing rights (amount abo 10% N .
20| SRS R (P 0N T2 ) ey Servicing Tights Yo 1% imA Not applicable
MM ERELNRERIEEE(ER Deferred tax  assets arising from  temporary
2HI0nfREE B BHIRAREIEREE differences (amount above 10% threshold, net of] A B Not applicable
{#) related tax Hability)
2208 1 SR B Amount exceeding the 15% threshold 3 Not applicable
Hob . e EEBITEBRnE L E of which: significant investments in the common , .
23 = stock of financial sector entities i Not applicable
JAlH ok BB RS TR of which: mortgage servicing rights A48 F] Not applicable
H: it sRESRERES of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary . .
25 = differences A Not applicable
WHRCETI BEAN S ZEBIES ST National specific regulatory adjustments applied to
261, j 263,845
ok CET? capital
, o s g Cumulative fair value gains arising from the
ol EEHL RIS I R R ) 1T o b land o boildinas (o d
a £ T £ B B AR B revaluation of land and buildings (own-use an 262,045
s Miate investment properties)
| 26b| — AR IEf TR RIS T EE Regulatory reserve for general banking risks 1,800
26 S EHE B TR EEHRNE A Securitization exposures specified in & notice given
U R by the Monetary Authority -
2%6d HiEEEN L iR R RN eI Cumulative losses below depreciated cost arising
B R A (e T B A AR B i from the institution's holdings of land and buildings -
26el FHEIRTHB A SN E R RN Capital shortfall of regulated non-bank subsidiaries -
TEEEERNEERNT PN EASE Capital investment in a connected company which
266808 (B EENERERN 1% is a commercial entity {amount above 15% of the -
) reporting institution's capital base)
e r e - s Regulatory deductions applied to CET] capital d
27 A% jﬁ EE?AT%%SE %,J—%E&:ﬁf}é’{ 3 10 %:sufﬁr:ient :]ﬁTl capIi)Fai and Tier 2 ci;ital 1:5 -
BRI A CETI BREVESEIL) cover deductions
263,845
392,885

- S . Qualifying ATI capital instruments plus any related
o = LA, -
S0|EFEATIATBIE TSR g R
. ; . hes of which: classified as equity under applicable
31k EBERE BT RRAERL [ s -
. . \ L of which: classified as liabilities under applicable
Rk < mmEAGEsEiagmEn L .
o . ~ Capital  instruments subject to  phase out
7 ) b , 2z -
33| FHEATIRATL R TRA TN arrangements from AT1 capital
HESETHEBATSFBRES=NE AT? capital instruments issued by consolidated
SUERATI R AZE (A A GRS EERIAT bank subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount .
FTANBIE) atlowed in AT1 capital of the consolidation group)
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Capital Structure and Adequacy {Continned)

of which: ATI capital insiruments issuwed by
subsidiaries subject to phase out arrangements

Investments in own AT1 capital instruments

38| EABA AT R A 32

Reciprocal cross-hoidings in AT1 capital instruments

PEREGSTERE LN ERER
BB THOAT BEERBNEZARERR
GBH10%FTEZED

Insignificant capital investments in AT1 capital
instruments issued by financial sector entities that are
outside the scope of regulatory consolidation {amount
above 10% threshold)

REREGSHENEEDIMIEMER

Significant capital investments in  ATI] capital

46| EEE EARR T A RE

40 i, AR g N instruments issued by financial sector entities that are -
BETIATI RS RN EAR AR outside the scope of regulatory consolidation
ai BRERATI S AN B 2T EESERER National specific regulatory adjustments applied to AT1
w capital )
2 RS AEREH_gEFRLMENEmALE Regulatory deductions applied to AT1 capital due to
ATTEAHRINE S insufficient Tier 2 capital to cover deductions i
43}; -
44 -

e e G
Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments plus any related
share premium

392,885

S HEE R BB AT R AT

pt

from Tier 2 capital

Capital instruments subject to phase out arrangements

BGERTHBARSTERRZTE
4RI AR B A TR (TR AR S R B 8K
HARIRER)

e 2 capital instraments issued by consolidated bank

subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount allowed
in Tier 2 capital of the consolidation group)

B SES R RS A

of which: capital instruments issued by subsidiaries

RRiRT Rl s B RAR

SRR BN R R EBNRR

9 BTHE L subject fo phase ont arrangements -
Sl b g . Collective impairment allowances and regulatory
Lo x 3 3 —
50f 7 B A SRR ERIER reserve for general banking risks eligible for inclusion in 1,800
Tier 2 capital

Investments in own Tier 2 capital instraments

S| AR R R RS

Reciprocal cross-holdings in Tier 2 capital instruments

PHEEESSTENSERUIMEREE
S4BT T RAEENIEEAERTE
(B 105PE > 80

Insignificant capital investments in Tier 2 capital
instruments issued by financial sector entities that are
outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount
above 10% threshold})

RESEGSSTRORELUMISRER

53 s Ten g A BB E AT AR

tA

Significant capital investments in Tier 2 capital
instruments issued by financial sector entities that are!
outside the scope of regulatory consolidation

BRAR AN AR ERESR

56ﬁ

National specific regulatory adjustments applied to Tier
2 capital

(138,176}
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Capital Structure and Adequaey (Continned)

IMEEREBHATREFNHEN LR

Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising from
the revaluation of land and buildings (own-use and

EERRITAER

Eéﬁ%g ﬁ( ?ﬁ;?gi\%:f g{?ﬂ;gﬁ%ﬁ% il:l.;:ts;nent properties} eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 (138,176)
{138,176)
139,976
532,861
619,811
63.39%
63.39%
85.97%
7.00%
S|E o - AR A of which: capital conservation buffer requirement 1.25%
B G T A z’ 1'vhich: bank specific countercyclical  buffer 1.25%
quirement
: R T P
7 Hipr - BHAGE R HIRTHAI 2 af which: G-SIB or D-SIB buffer requirement 0.00%

56.39%

HAEEECETIRELL R National CET1 minimum ratio “RiE R Not appliicable
HEASEE A SRR National Tier | minimum ratio 78 Not applicable;

b

S ERRE AR

NEETESHTENEEM SR
TR RTHCETI R ASE  ATIR A
BECREATEBNIEE OEARE

National Total capital rminireum ratio

Insignificant capital investments in CET1 capital
instruments, AT! capital instruments and Tier 2
capital instruments issued by financial sector entities|
that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation

R i Not applicable

REEESFCTERBEM SR
FRBTHCETIRAERE - ATIRAE
BECHELSERNERESEH

Significant capital investments in CETI capital
instruments issued by financial sector entities that are
outside the scope of regulatory consolidation

g R (BRI RIRA R )

Mortgage servicing rights (net of related tax liability)

A #F Not applicable

Ln

HMERSERELNBERERE(E
EREBHEILIERE)

Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences

“RiEH Not applicable

{net of related tax Hability)
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Capital Structure and Adequacy (Continued)

Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respe'ct off
exposures subject to the basic approach and the

76 Egii{ éﬁ HRBOMEAETORES | dadized (oredit risk) approach  (prior o 1.800
(FE REAY) application of cap)
- s o Cap on inelusion of provisions in Tier 2 under the
E%$n+ﬁﬁﬁﬁ$({mfg)mﬁﬂn+%(f basic apprOaCh and the standardized (credit }_-isk) 9,340

Mrars A —GEEPeEfs HR

approach

EREBIAZERADHRIRBEITEE

T8 prysta s (ME LR

Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of]
exposures subject to the IRB approach (prior to
application of cap)

FEIRBEH B FAlet A R R a4
Ee LR
AP MBR T HESIR

79

BRI ET] 4 By

R

Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under the
IRB approach

Current cap on CETI capital instruments subjecrt to
phase out arrangements

A TEFE Not applicable

B LR T A CETI B BBR (1

) o LB B )

—

Amount excluded from CETI due to cap (excess over
cap after redemptions and maturities)

3 Not applicable

BT RAVAT] R FEREY

B s b

Current cap on ATl capital instruments subject to
|phase out arrangements

HPREWLRTF A AATI L8
B3| BH(7E51 RARIS R EJBTEIIRZ & i L IR
ZE)

Amount excluded from ATI capital due to cap (excess
over cap afier redemptions and maturities)

BT B R LR R AT

M s

Current cap on Tier 2 capital instruments subject to
|phase out arrangements

FBHE BRI A AR
BS | BB 3T RARIE] R BYHE AR B IR
&)

Amount excluded from Tier 2 capital due to cap
(excess over cap after redemptions and maturities)
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Capital Striecture and Adeguac

Continued

The table below presents the balance sheets based on the accounting scope of consolidation
and the regulatory reporting scope respectively as at 31 December 2016.

ERHERR

Consolidated] Under regulatory| 4} EH > SR

Statement of] scope of] Cross-

Financial Position conselidation -| referenced to

as in published| Bank's Statement| Definition of]

financial disclosure of Financial Capital

statement Position Components]
HK5'060 HKS$'000
EERSREREESE Cash and balances with banks 713,822 713,822
SEEEITREESIENIZ12EE  |Placements with banks maturing between 427 191 427.191

AEER one and twelve months > )
. I oans and advances to customers and other
P R B E A AR 168,195 168,195
accounts

THERE Available-for-sale investments 39,155 39,155
ERBANT I HE Investments in subsidiaries - 10
W . EE R Property, plant and equipment 72,878 72,878
g Investinent properties 284,700 2@4,700
e B Tax recoverable 2] .
wESE Total assets 1,705,943 1,705,951

Hir s Ay Other libilities and provisions 23,501 23,137
FHERIR A Current tax liabilities 9 9
BIEFTERR Deferred tax liabilities 4,998 4,998
aftast Total liabilities 1,045,438 1,045,697
z o e e e j B
archoldersiBquty, . L .

TR Paid-in share capital 310,600 310,000
Hb g 0 FUeHE £t 5 [of which: share capital paid up in cash and :

B e E R A capitalized from realized 264,987 1

R PR revaluation gains of properties

X I EE share capital capitalized from

mRAMEaEEEY | unreatized revaluation gains of 45,013 @

B properties
Hr R B Other properties revaluation resreve 2,303 2,303 3)
NEEGEE o investment revaluation reserve 5,169 5,169 “)
e (ieneral reserve 61¢ 610 =)
R Regulatory reserve 1,800 1,800 (6)
RSN Retained carnings 340,623 340,372 7
HiEiE - RHEIEY ¥ |of which: unrealized revaluation gains of 233.105 g

BT investment properties ’ &)

HEeEENR other retained eanings and

% 107,267

Fi profits
RIS AT Total shareholders' equity 660,505 660,254
AREEEESAT Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 1,705,943 1,705,951
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Capital Structure and Adequacy {Continued)

The table below shows the reconciliation of the capital components from balance sheet
based on regulatory reporting scope to the Capital Disclosure Template as at 31 December
2016.

ZLHEEHSY]  Cross-referenced to
Component of] Bank's Statement of]

regulatory capital Financial Position
reported by the Bank above

HK3’000

CE _ E tal : instrame

E;&gﬁg’gﬁf@%@n%ﬂ:%% Pirect]y issued qualifying CET! capitai. 264,087 )
TR LIRS Iy instruments plus any related share premium

(R Retained earnings 340,372 N
e Disclosed reserves 9,882  (3YHA)H5)H(6)
“ ' : 615,241

i

T A A

CE S £

WENCETIE AN EHEEY | National specific regulatory adjustments applied to 237208

EEE e CET!I capital ,

Bl - i B B ST 5 B MHEE BIIR)Y  |Cumulative fair value gains arising from the

B ETHESNEMATE  jrevaluation of land and buildings (own-use and 235,408 3HS)
BEEE investment properties)

— R TR AR S Regulatory reserve for general banking risks 1,800 ()
HICETI RANEEAD al re dedictions 1 cap 237,208

{tiapel

. capi

ERRE - Collective impairment allow
EIEE R R B reserve for general banking risks eligible for

1,800 (6)
inclusion in Tier 2 capital
AR
ductions. | 1,600

AN CEEARNEEEEES  |National specific regulatory adjustments applied to
ERERE Tier 2 capital

378,033

e
fo ATl

oAt
R mﬁx‘gm\

.

e
“' @‘ﬁf AR

i
Wl
i

ances

e i i

and reguiato

e R AR I R AR SRR
latory deudcsions. ||
i) 2 AR

(126,189)

INVEEERS inclusion in Tier 2 capital

I T ; AR ¥ 2 (125,189)
127,989
506,022

TIESERH A ZHEANEE  |Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising
+at R ESEY (BB ENERE from the revaluation of land and buildings (own-
B BT EEEENESENER use and investment properties) eligible for

(126,189  1@Q)+G)1+B8)*45%
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Capital Structure and Adeguacy (Continued)

The Bank has already applied full capital deductions under the BCR. The
Capital Disclosures Template as at 31 December 2016 is shown below,

which is presented in HK$'000.

20165512 B3 H 2 A BIEE

H TR S ROECET RASIB I FE (]

Capital Disclosures Template as at 31 December 2016

Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital instruments

Emen plus any related share premium 264,987
2 %%iﬁiﬁj Retained earnings 340372
S|CREAREE Disclosed reserves 9,882
4 (S CETI AR R R BT Directly issued capital subject to phase out from CET! —_ icabl
(RIBGRESRLE]) capital {only applicable to non-joint stock companies) R Not applicable

HEF S IRTTINB A SR T U HB =R
BT BARBEENVBIRRER
(FIst AGR S R EAYCETT AR

w

~1

fEEHFE

R R Pl

Minority interests arising from CET1 capital
instruments 1ssued by consolidated bank subsidiaries)
and held by third parties (amount allowed in CETI|
capital of the consolidation group)

e T

Valuation adjustments

RN IR DR AR R &)

[=2]

Goodwill {net of associated deferred tax liability)

H i A (DR ERRER TR
f8)

Other intangible assets {net of associated deferred tax
liability)

10| BT RERIE & AV IR R

Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax ﬁabilities

1

st

BE R EE

Cash flow hedge resen;e

EIRBAT EE TELEREH e BB B E S

12| o>

Excess of total EL amount over total eligible provisions
under the IRB approach [

B e X BEL NS B

Gain-on-sale arising from securifization transactions

AT EESENSEBERESNERR

Ve anghrr e v pgamag

Guains and losses due to changes in own credit risk on
fair valued liabilities

FLEH SRR SASIFRE (THRE

Bl s

Defined benefit pension fund net assets (net of
associated deferred tax liabilities)

PEASNCETI HARBIRE GBI
O REFBRENTEAMRPEELES
IR

Investments in own CET1 capital instraments (if not
already netted off paid-in capital on reported balance
sheet)

17 EABR B RICETI B A

Reciprocal cross-holdings in CET] capital instruments

REEESGSHENEREI SRR
B ESTHCET A EERNIEERRER
FEF (R 1057 2 B

Insignificant capital investments in CET1 capital]
instruments issued by financial sector entities that are|
outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount
above 10% threshold)

REEEGETRATEELI SR
IR RS THCET A ERNERE A%
OB 10972 )

[Significant capital
instruments issued by financial sector entities that are

investments in CET! capital
outside the scope of regulatory comsolidation (amount

above 10% threshold)

20Z IR E HAE (B 109 TR 2 B

Mortgage servicing rights (amount above 10%

threshold)

& F Not applicable

MRt ERESNBEREEE(ER
1028 BRNRERRERES
{#)

2

—

Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences
{amount above 10% threshold, net of related tax
Hability)

i FH Not applicable

221U 1 ST B

Amount exceeding the 15% threshold

F i Not applicable
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Capital Structure and Adeguacy (Continued)

of which: significant investments in the common

K3 Not applicable

30| & EARATI AR SR IME (I AR R (7 52 (R

3 =3 stock of financial sector entities
24| Ed BB EEE T of which: mortgage servicing rights XA Not applicable
ek RESEEREECNIBERES of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary \ .
25 &= differences FiE R Not applicable
RN S AN AT EREEET National specific regulatory adjustments applied to
261, k 237,208
B CET1 capital
- e T S S g Cumulative fair value gains arising from the
o[ LRI B RAEIR) T AR . 135408
a 64 A ST B NS revaluation of land and buildings {own-use an \
REEGTHEEIRRL investment properties)
26b|—HRIRITER G B EE Regulatory reserve for general banking risks 1,800
2% EHERE B THMAATISEENE S Securitization exposures specified in a notice given
Nl by the Monetary Authority -
26d PR AT Y - b B SR R R T R Cumulative losses below depreciated cost arising
R A T R AR R 1] B R 1 from the institution's holdings of land and buildings -
26el B ESEEITIN B A BIRTEAE A Capital shortfall of regulated non-bank subsidiaries . -
TEERERNVEEELTPNELRS Capital investment in a connected company which
26015 (M ESEEE NERN1% is a commercial entity (amount above 15% of the -
B reporting institution's capital base)
. - s epeet. Regulatory deductions applied to CET1 capital due
27 ﬂ}ﬁ%/ﬁﬁﬂﬁ'ﬂfx ?I§$&;g§;%éLi Bl to %nsuff‘gient ATl cap];f;l and Tier 2 cipital 1o -
it A CET 1 A LIBRA B LI cover deductions
237,208

Qualifying AT1 capital instruments plus any related
share premim

378,033

3

[y

Hop r RSER SRR REAER

of which: classified as equity under applicable
accounting standards

R2ES  RBEAG A RRT R A B

of which: classified as liabilities under applicable
accounting standards

33 AT 5 B BT R AT

Ga

Capitel  instruments subject (o phase out

arrangements from AT capital

HSGSRTHEBAS&TIHEE =5
34V AIIATI A B (15T A LR S SR IIATI
BARTRE)

AT capital instruments issued by consolidated
bank subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount
allowed in AT capital of the consolidation group)

B LB F TR R BT R 2
EEHTHIATI RS

3

e

37| H A S WOATI A B RINE

of which: ATI capital instruments issued by
subsidiaries subject to phase out arrangements

Investments in own AT capital instruments

3B AR RERATI R AT

Reciprocal  cross-holdings in AT1  capital

mstruments

REEEHFSHRENIEE DM SRS
HRZTOAN BESRBIEENERR
BRI Z 8D

3

O

Insignificant capital investments in ATl capital
instruments issued by financial sector entities that
are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation
{amount above 10% threshold)

74



Capital Structure and Adequacy (Continued)

REREROHBENRRIINISRRT
BERTATIEARENERNEARE

Significant capital investments in ATl capital
instruments issued by financial sector entities that are
outside the scope of regulatery consolidation

BRERMEANTEEREREREER

4l

National specific regulatory adjustments applied to AT1

capital

B A TR ) D8R A A DA ORI A AE

4 AT1 ﬁz:}!][%‘ﬂ’jﬁ*ﬁiﬂ Jﬁ

g

Regulatory deductions applied to AT] capital due to
tnsufficient Tier 2 capital to cover deductions

43'

46| S EHE IR E AR B I AR R E

Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments plus any related
share premium

378,033

Capital instruments subject to phase out arrangements

FAREEE)

AT| JEHE R A AR AT from Tier 2 capital i
BESEAMBATISTIEREEHEE Tier 2 capital instruments issued by consolidated bank
ARy AR AR (HFT ASGSEER R subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount allowed| -

in Tier 2 capital of the consolidation group)

Rt FIF R R 20 7

of which: capital instruments issued by subsidiaries

fRSRTT BRI E B

5

b

RBREERE RERFENRE

49 BITHIE RS subject 1o phase out arrangements )
i al t — pmm . Collective impairment allowances and regulatory
e = - 3 —
50 ERIEIHA—REENRLRERER reserve for general banking risks eligible for inclusion in 1,800
Tier 2 capital

Investments in own Tier 2 capital instruments

53| A R W RS AR

Reciprocal cross-holdings in Tier 2 capital instruments

REEES Tm?ﬁm%s[ﬁuﬁfﬁ’}ﬁﬁﬂ¥ﬁ

Insignificant capital investments in Tier 2 capital
instruments issucd by financial sector entities that are

SHIEE T R A AR EARA A outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount i
(109 T2 B0 above 10% threshold)
N - Significant capital investments in Tier 2 capital
et TEnE L s
55 NEEEE de‘%i} ﬁg 9]:{?]@&{;%% instrements issued by financial sector entities that are, "
BT _RREARRNEARALR outside the scope of regulatory consolidation
56 BER SRR EEERERECYEESR National specific regulatory adjustments applied to Tier (126,189)
B 2 capital '
gl [ — 2T ; Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising from the
N z 4
56 gg?é%gg%éi?gggégé% revaluation of land and buildings {(own-use and (126,189)
a & . , g . S
- investment properties) eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 ’
B R AT RN capital
(126,189)
127,989
506,022
571,152
66.19%
66.19%
88.60%
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Capital Structure and Adeguacy {Continued)

65| B » AR A of which: capital conservation buffer requirement . 0.63%
66|zt - g e EE LTS z" v.vhich.' bank specific countercyclical buffer 0.63%
quirement
P BRI E R T ARG . .
67 ol . of which: G-SIB or D-SIB buffer requirement 0.00%
BEUITHES 4 fer req g

60.43%

r=) BEE
69| B R CETI B e National CET1 minimum ratio K Not applicable
T B A EE— e AR (R National Tier | minimum ratio T8 Not applicable
71 National Total capital minimum ratio R F Not applicable

iR EEEEEARELLR
AR R B

- - Insignificant capital investments in CET! capital
AEEL A 4 O LB AR
RERTE I HATREAS SRR instruments, AT1 capital instruments and Tier 2

g BE =, iy -
2 E%%ﬁﬁﬁ@;l%fﬁ,——wﬁ é:f'l § AR capital instruments issued by financial sector entities
BR_REARBOFRRLR that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation

PNEEEHFOHENEBLIIERIE Significant capital investments in CET1 capitat
T EREESHITHICETIE A - ATIE A E instraments issued by financial sector entities that are -

BRI AR E A CEREE outside the scope of regulatory consolidation
TARB L R (CAR R IR A M) Mortgage servicing rights (net of related tax liability} Z#FE Not applicable
75 S EEENEEREEE(E Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences ) licabl
LB EROE IR A ) (net of related tax liability) A 18] Not applicable

Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of]

SR A _REBPAREA L exposures subject to the basic approach and the

76 &@ﬁ ({%—_jﬁ BBOHBEATHRAE standardized (credit risk) approach (prior to 1,800
(HEF LARAT) application of cap)
et Ak s o N Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under the
FEAHEEREEER BEETE® . _ . o
T TR A A e R :;;i a:ﬁproach and the standardized {credit risk) 8,583

- R s Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of]
N e SL RS
SFEE A R A DR IRBEH HE exposures subject to the IRB approach {(prior to -

78 N ) e
THOH T L IRAT) aoplication of cap)
79 TEIRBE EE THE A E A bR [Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under the
HeE LR IRB approach -

ABIEH I A R TR A TCET 1 B A 8T Current cap on CETI capital instruments subject to —— licabl
BT ER phase out arrangements “#H] Not applicable
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Capital Structure and Adeguacy {Continued)

BB LIRS ACETI B BER (7
BRI R BRI AR S LR )

Amount excluded from CETI due to cap (excess aver
cap after redemptions and maturities)

4B H Not applicable

82

B PEIRATATI B A T
BT LR

Current cap on ATI capital instruments subject to
phase out arrangements

83

P B IRTTA B 5] AATI B4 A8
B AT RAR[E R FIHHIR R L IR
ZH)

Amount excluded from ATI capital due to cap
(excess over cap afier redemptions and maturities)

84

B EN B G ERIRT — R AR

BIEETT LR

Current cap on Tier 2 capital instruments subject to
| phase out arrangements

85

HRE W LRTTT T A TR B8
BE(FFa1 RIBIEIR BYHTHEIR BB IR
Z 8

Amount excluded from Tier 2 capital due to cap
(excess over cap after redemptions and maturities)

017E12831 HE2016E12 831 H 2 T 5%

The Main Features Template as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 is

AT T shown below:
- KARIT AR E

&7 A Issuer Tai Sang Bank Limited

78 A5 #% B ¥E (40 CUSIP - ISIN B¢ Unique identifier (eg CUSIP, ISIN or Bloomberg . _
2 Bloomberg##/, A Br BT HITE) identifier for private placement) R Not applicable
— . ) EhE
f=:=) ~ by
3|y Rk Governing law(s) of the instrument Laws of Hong Kong
BT Regulatory treatment
4 (EEEDE=) B’ Transitional Basel 1] rules’ 4 F Not applicable
.. * CETIEXR
fosed -G + =
5 (PEEGESY LiEEIEEE] Post-transitional Basel 111 rules Common Equity Tier 1
6 SRR AR/ R/ R R R Eligible at solo¥/group/group & solo B
o Solo
L Instrument type (types to be specified by each EIER
LA &b e .
7 FRER (BEMEETIEYD jurisdiction) Ordinary shares|
g RS EANTEREE L EREEE Amount recognised in regulatory capital (Currency in HK$265
Hit o PRSI HER) million, as of most recent reporting date)

o] w4 Par value of instrument HK$1
10{Erst4y4m Accounting classification Sharehol d;%%ﬁiﬁ;
N B8 THER Original date of issuance 1934, 1969, 1990, 22000116

NP KA

125k AE SR e HARR Perpetual or dated Perpetual

- o I

13 [EETHIERE Original maturity date No maturity
S YA B S Ak B & T

14 é&%% B E St £A ST ARE Tssuer call subject to prior supervisory approval ]fﬁo

HHEETEEA - A EELE Optional call date, contingent call dates and ; .
15 DR RIS SRR redemption amount "I Not applicable
16 % ETIEIE B (0@ A Subsequent call dates, if applicable ¥ Not applicable
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Capital Structure and Adequacy (Continued)

EE KRR  Coupons/dividends
. N . I B

17 Ewmeeitg J 55 Fixed or floating dividend/coupon Floating dividend

i8 BEEEE R s Coupon rate and any related index R iE 8 Not applicable

19 F R A B AT Existence of a dividend stopper f

0
Fully discretaionary, partially discretionary S ErETE
A . N 3 {
20 SERNE - ALY - SRR or mandatory Fully discretalonary
s L i 55 o Existence of step up or other incentive to HE
21| EETHEESHREEE o o
= s : . 3 440
22 JEREIERS Nencumulative or cumulative ;
Non-cumulative
23| miEE L B T B Convertible or non-convertiable ;FEJ’E& '
Non-convertible
24 g HRESE R If convertible, conversion trigger{s) R Not applicable
25 EETEE o S EREESY If convertible, fully or partially A} Not applicable
26 EETEEN o EREER If convertible, conversion rate i Not applicable
ol » SRSl TR If convertible, mandatory or optional . ]

27 2 conversion 48 Not applicable
EEEE - JEINER T ERE If convertible, sepcify instrument type . )

Bl convertible into AR Not applicable
EuER o ISEERENEE If convertible, specity issuer of instrument it N .

29 BN converts into ~Ri#F8 Not applicable

305K R Write-down feature iﬁ

31 FRE - AR, If write-down, write-down trigger(s) A4 Not applicable

32 ERE o 2R if write-down, full or partial A} Not applicable

331 ERE o sk BN E If write-down, permanent or temporary Fi#F Not applicable

BN - ?ﬁ‘ﬁ,@%{ﬁf%fﬁ If temporary write-down, description off . .

34 pe | write-up mechanism A Not applicable
X Position in subordination hierarchy in liquidation
HBBEGHREPANEEHE o - . . .

- specify instrument e immediately senior to 3 Not applicabl

35 S AT ) gnztmgent) typ 4 iR Not applicable

36| Bl BRI SR i EE Non-compliant transitioned features f

0

INEE - EIEA SRS If yes, specify non-compliant features TR Not applicable

£

# WA IR R B i T A AR IR SRIT R
(FA)E H» S R AR B b

+ RARRNE R AR GRTT
SROEAVRBP I RAHFTRE B R L5

* EEEBs AR

IR{T 2 — R BRAEA TR 2 2B R
BB AL SRTT 2 QEIEPIHR R -

Footnote:

# Regulatory treatment of capital instuments subject to transitional artangements

provided for in Schedule 4H of the Banking (Capital) Rules

+ Regulatory treatrnent of capital instuments not subject to transitional arrangements

provided for in Schedule 4H of the Banking {Capital) Rules

* Include solo-consolidated

Full terms and conditions of the Bank's CET1 capital instruments are disclosed in the
website of the Bank.
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Leverage Ratio Disclosures

1544

BLF 725 mR20171F 123 H 7 SEigEthr The tables below represent the summary comparison table for reconciling
FEPENE T EEENEIIR G EEBE the total consolidated assets of the Bank as stated in the financial
EHRTEEELER L SEREENERRERE statements to the on-balance sheet exposures used in computing the
SRR - leverage ratio and the Leverage Ratio Template as at 31 December 2017,
presented in HK$000.
2017412 531 H 7 iR Es Summary Comparisen Table as at 31 December 2017
. N Total consolidated assets as per published financial
3 Nl
| B R A £ R o 1,861,277
N - ' Adjustment for investments in banking, financial
N = 4 Pt + =t ris H
5 %Eggﬁﬁgéﬁ?ﬁgz ﬁ;g%g% insurance or commercial entities that are 10
;ju ¢ i VAR % R consolidated for accounting purposes but outside the
R RRBAE scope of regulatory consolidation
RIS MR N a Adjustment for fiduciary assets recognised on the
3 LA -~ EF ST ERLRREEE balance sheet pursuant to the operative accounting ;
R ENTAE 2 EEEM AR Hramework but excluded from the leverage ratio
# exposure measure
4 PHEELTE SR T HRySs Adjustments for derivative financial instruments -
5 HRE SR E T BRI B 5 Adjustment for securities financing transactions (i.e. A
E4m s EEE repos and similar secured lending) [
- N . Adjustment for off-balance sheet items (i.e.
6 Nk conversion to credit equivalent amounts of off- -
- ) e ) balance sheet exposures)
7 |EAhagEs Other adjustments 6,928
1,868,215

20174E12 B 31 H 2 g R s R AR Leverage Ratio Common Disclosnre Template as at 31 December 2017

1 .é‘ﬁﬁﬁ%?ﬂ gg@“@jﬁ;ﬁ%jﬁ&ﬁ On-balance sheet itemé (eicfudmg derivatives and 1868215
BBV D (B SFTs, but including collateral) T

o |T0E: ETE (EEBEHE=) —HEEE Less: Asset amounts deducted in determining Basel
BRI A ET) ITE Tier 1 capital (reported as negative amounts) )

; EERAEENEBRRBEECFEESTE Total - on-balance _sheet' exposures  {excluding 1.868.215
T B R A 50 | BT 8 derivatives and SFTs) (sum of lines 1 and 2) T

Replacement cost associated with all derivatives

4 ?ggﬂfggﬁgjggﬁ%@ﬁ?%ﬁ&x(w gz:;;:;ions (i.e. net of eligible cash variaton -
FE BT T B4 BB RS Add-on amounts for PFE associated with all
> ARSI IR derivatives transactions -
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Leverage Ratio Disclosures (Continned)

20174E12 31 H 2 1EE R B Hi B Leverage Ratio Common Disclosure Template as at 31 December 2017
(D (Continuned)

= {2 8e1000
\%ﬁ‘é@@l@@%ﬁ%’%ﬁi

io:fram
i

BERNEGTFHFFINARESEASRE Gross-up for derivatives collateral provided where

6 cRHLREETE T REIEH SR deducted from the balance sheet assets
7 O BT T EX BRI 0 4 28 Less: Deductions of receivables assets for cash
RS AU AL SY variation margin provided in derivatives -
8 -?Di% ;439%5‘5 %ﬁiﬁﬁil‘ﬁﬁﬁ}% EP%%: Less: Exempted CCP leg of clieni-cleared ifrade
g%i;ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ b (BB exposures {reported as negative amounts) -
9 BREEEHEERITEIBITER S Adjusted effective notional amount of written credit|
H"EE derivatives -

IR e EEHTE T EELAE Less: Adjusted effective notional offsets and add-on
10 1 E -2 ST B IInssErioE (A deductions for written credit derivatives (reported as -

BT negative amounts)
1 $1 T B E R EEEE (E4Z 107700 Total derivative exposures (sum of lines 4 to 10)
ZHE) )

ok N
d

ST B (R RS Gross SFT assets (with no recognition of netting),

12 E TR SRS Bt after adjusting for sales accounting N
- = - - Less: Netted amounts of cash payables and cash
0 BERERT S EFESSIIENE . .
13 o s _. receivables of gross SFT assets (reported as negative .
ARG RBRT) oy (reported a5 negiv
prpre—— —
14 g%m%xgﬁgﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁ{%ﬁ%ﬁhﬁ CCR exposure for SFT assets .
15 |RERSEREE Agent transaction exposures j
1 |EFRALBRERRIBHR(F 1221517 'Total securities financing transaction exposures {sum
Mz 8 of lines 12 to 15) -
s Al o %&%@3&%&\; e £ : ;
17 (EEaEE/NEEEE LT Off-balance sheet exposure at gross notional amount : 25,589
18 B ERAEESEBEENNESHE Less: Adjustments for conversion to credit equivalent 19.267
B EBFET) amounts (reported as negative amounts) (19,267)]

Off-balance sheet items (sum of lines 17 and [8)

19 |REAMFINEE ELITRISTENZ &

; "%‘{\‘35%@?@%%3’3}3\*}@}%” 7\'\2“{? A y ; 1 TR EEETS : e --\.:f.\ r— K,,_.& - ,%%\ ,>: \.J;gi\_ag_ T ' , o . o : e ﬁ%ﬁ"ﬁ%\‘“ %
. T
20 |—EpEE Tier 1 capita 392,885
21 gf”ﬁ%ﬁgg{% VI IGRIMTRNIZ o) exposures (sum of lines 3, 11, 16 and 19) 1,874,537

L

Base] III leverage ratio
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BUF 2 FA8FRF 20165212 F 31 5 2 HiREE L8
2 LA TR L IRTT I BE MR I PR D K 2 R 5 W T B 2R
ZRREEEREE S BERFERNERAE R

Levergge Ratio Disclosures {Continued)

The tables below represent the summary comparison table for reconciling
the total consolidated assets of the Bank as stated in the financial
statements to the on-balance sheet exposures used in computing the

FRELARBR -

leverage ratio and the Leverage Ratio Template as at 31 December 20316,

presertted in HK$'000

20164E12 H 31 H 2 BiiRE L e Summary Comparison Table as at 31 December 2016
g - . Total consolidated assets as per published financial
o e .
U | E#H ERRATIRNG S RERE statements 1,705,943
- . . Adjustment for investments in banking, financial,
: =4 5 B AELEE | g g
5 %i? gg%ﬁi@ﬁ%ﬁé ﬁé’%g% gég insurance or commercial entities that are 0
;}_‘f ; EEJ/ AR zﬁz ? consolidated for accounting purposes but outside the
AT ARG scope of regulatory consolidation
R RN S EAE Adjustment for fiduciary assets recognised on the
3 FNTES - ErEERE AR R EE balance sheet pursuant to the operative accounting )
HEBE N E S E SR AIEYTEEE framework but excluded from the leverage ratio
4 exposure measure
4 | BTSSR T By Adjustments for derivative financial instruments -
5 HHESEHE BREEIEBTY R Adjustment for securities financing transactions (i.e. i
HArE L AR EED repos and similar secured lending)
- N - Adjustment for off-balance sheet items (i.e.
6 %gf}%ﬁggggiggg;ggg A conversion to credit equivalent amounts of off- -
et S ) balance sheet exposures})
7 iHAbIER Other adjustments 7,500
A5 1,713,453

20165212 A31 H Z AR L3 E I BB

Leverage Ratio Common Disclosure Template as at 31 December 2016

FEHETE AR S ERNEE AW
EEREERURESD

| %@ﬁfﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁ%@(*@%ﬁé& " |On-balance sheet items (excluding derivatives and] L 713,453
FHAE S - (EEHEIRE) SFTs, but including collateral) s

5 I BrE (BEEREDZ) —8FFF Less: Asset amounts deducted in determining Basel
PRI ERER a8 BT T¥l Tier | capital (reported as negative amounts) -

, |HERRERNERKERE(T RIS Total on-balance sheet exposures (excluding 713453
TR ESE TR EIR2TIEmZ 8D derivatives and SFTs) (sum of lines 1 and 2) 2142

Replacement cost associated with all derivatives
transactions (i.e. net of eligible cash variation
margin)

Ftf T E TER S RMAEE R KRS
ARYERTHT IR

Add-on amounts for PFE associated with all
derivatives transactions
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Leverage Ratio Disclosures (Continued)

20164512 {31 H Z AR LR B B
R

BRENEMTHFFNARREARE

Leverage Ratio Common Disclesure Template as at 31 December 2016
|(Continned)

Gross-up for derivatives collateral provided where

R CAIEY E

6 WA T L B s deducied from the balance sheet assets
7 L BRET A T H A B RALa R & 8l Less: Deductions of receivables assets for cash i

variation margin provided in derivatives

HOR © R BB AR RIE T
8 |AFSEX AR AT ER AR (AR
BT

Less; Exempted CCP leg of client-cleared trade
exposures (reported as negative amounts)

RABEBECHEGHNTEIRNERS
BZRE

Adjusted effective notional amount of written credit
derivatives

I OB ERTTETRELAR
(WA LAZpEat: it bedloplic e LRE iy AgV s =]
Wzor)

Less: Adjusted effective notional offsets and add-on
deductions for written credit derivatives (reported as
negative amounts

P& TRERERIEES (F4Z 1017180

e

Total derivative exposures (sum of lines 4 to 10)

Gross SFT assets {(with no recognition of netting),

#®

12 BTSSR B E Rt after adjusting for sales accounting -
. e . . : Less: Netted amounts of cash payables and cash

13 gg&*&fﬁg@éﬁg; Eﬁi@;s—kﬁ’g}}ﬁﬁfﬁ ;cncgi::i!;;es of gross SFT assets {reported as negative .

14 Eﬁ%ﬁi}ﬁ’i%%@ HEFHEREBERE CCR exposure for SFT assets

15 |REX B RBES

Apgent transaction exposures

EHREXHRRRBREGE 122157

P

Total securities financing transaction exposures {sum
oflines 12 to 15)

Off-balance sheet exposure at gross notional amount

19 | EEE MBS H TR ISR 2

20 [—RES

Tier 1 capital

17 | BESERIERR B LSBT 10,786
R BEE RS ENERRNE Less: Adjustments for conversion to credit equivalent

18 B0 R amounts (reported as negative amounts) (3.993)

Qff-balance sheet items (sum of lines 17 and 18) 4,793

378,033

B RIS EERECES - 11 - [6R191TEmZ

2 e

T(EzrgpE=) RSk

Total exposures (sum of lines 3, 11, 16 and 19}

Basel I leverage ratio

1,718,246
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(i)

(i)

HRTTIRI R G AR
EFERBER
FAthFE AR 7 B R

HERERNAREEZBAFERE
2

HEEEMNER
HEAEW I HARE
HEAMKRIINERREZESUERE
5=

EHERRCEFTREE

BTRASA R REERE -
MR S S EN R R
PR EE TR AR - ML FERIT 2 8
B UEEEE, -

EUEREBERZEFTERE

SRTTER AR T BT BT
TERE -

HBEGE B4R

0164382 - |ITHEE LR
EESUAFSRTE (FE) HUE
22 11 R RS ETTEN
SRR - R HE®ER0175128
31 B RIT AT E R AR Eo R I
AHT AR -

Capital Charge for Credit, Market and Operational Risks

The capital ratio in note 3.5 to the financial statements represents the
consolidated ratio of the position of the Bank for regulatory purposes as at 31
December 2017 and 2016 computed in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
Rules.

The capital requirements for each class of exposures are sumimarised as follows :

)

(i)

(iii)

Capital charge for credit risk

BEEK

Capital requirement

2017 2016

HK$000 HKS$000

Bank exposures 13,812 5,605

Residential mortgage loans 7,759 6,941
Other exposures which are not past

due exposures 37,862 38,049
Total capital charge for on-balance

sheet exposures 39433 . 54,395

Direct credit substitutes 320 320

Trade-related contingencies 26 18
Total capital charge for off-balance

sheet exposures M6 338

Total capital charge for credit risk 59,779 54,933

The Bunk uses the Basic Approach for calculating credit risk. This
disclosure is made by multiplying the Bank's risk-weighted amount derived
from the relevant calculation approach by 8%, not the Bank's actual
“regulatory capital”.

Capital charge for operational risk

2017 2016
HK$000 HK$000
Capital charge for operational risk 3,317 3,097

The Bank uses the Basic Indicator Approach for calculating operational
risk.

Market risk capital charpge
2016

HEK$000

2017
HK$°000

Market risk capital charge - -

The Bank was granted by the HKMA an exemption from the caleulation of
market risk under the exemption criteria under section 22(1) of the
Banking (Capital) Rules on 22 March 2016 and has excluded market risk
in the caleulation of capital ratio since then and as at 31 December 2017,
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Countercyclical Capital Buffer Ratio Disclosures

As at 31 December 2017, the Bank’s countercyclical capital buffer ratio
was 1.25% (2016: 0.625%). This was the same as the jurisdiction
countercyclical capital buffer of Hong Kong for 2017, at the level of
1.25% (2016: 0.625%), as the Bank only operates and has private sector
credit exposures in Hong Kong, with risk weighted amount of
HK$159,078,000 (2016: HKS$156,072,000), for the purpose of the
calculation of its countercyclical capital buffer ratio,

Disclosure Templates and Tables Under Revised Pillar 3 Disclosure
Requirements

@
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Table OVA: Overview of Risk Management

While management of major risk areas is delegated to the relevant
Board Committees, the full Board assumes the ultimate
responsibility of overseeing and monitoring the Bank's overall
risks, These Committees include Credit Committee (for credit
risk), Asset & Liability Committee (for capital adequacy, liguidity,
market and interest rate risk) and Executive Committee (for
operational and other risks).

Both the Board and bank management fully acknowledge the
Bank's low risk appetite, hence the Bank's activities are confined to
a few areas which the Bank is able to identify, assess and exercise
full control over the risks. Control limits on different activities are
set out in the relevant policies which Board members were
provided with updated copies at meetings. A risk-averse culture
has been built throughout the organization, reinforced by active
communications with staff, weekly management meetings and
anpual staff briefings on the code of conduct. All policies and
operating procedures are available for handy reference by staff.

The management information system applied by the Bank permits
timely and accurate position reporting for regular reviews by
management and relevant staff. Positions, or anticipated positions
arising from taking certain activities with resultant pressure to meet
the policy limits, will be brought to management attention
prompily. lmpact analysis and sensitivity analysis will be
performed, and viable alternatives posted, for management
decisions to mitigate the risks. For the important control limits,
trigger levels below such limits are set serving as cushions
allowing time for management to take actions to rectify.

Important functions and activities, as determined by the Board, are
subject to periodic comphiance checks. The findings are posted to
senior management for information, and to the relevant functions
who are required to respond with remedial plans. At the same time,
Internal Audit formulates 3-year audit plans for review and
acceptance by Audit Commitiee, and conduets audit works
according to plan with results presented at Audit Committee
meetings where management would respond with action time-
table.

Stress tests are performed semi-annually to examine the key issues
including the risk of delinquent interbank placements, risk of
capital adequacy from falling property and share values, risk in
meeting the section 90 ratio of the Banking Ordinance due to
escalating values of property, shares and unsecured connected
exposures. Reverse stress tests are performed annually to examine
the sufficiency of buffers in meeting the different sections under
the Banking Ordinance.
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Disclosure Tempiates and Tables Under Revised Pillar 3 Disclosure Requirements

{Continued)

(ii) Template OV1 ; Overview of RWA as at 31 December 2017 (Unaudited - on

Reguiatory Consolidated Basis)

FIEEREZ EHEE SN TEH
PIRITRER AR R B
FREEeR IV EIRE X -

@ | @ (©)
BT REE BEEREE
RWA Minim'um capital
_ requirements
2007E12H31H 201749 FH30H 2014EIZAE3IHE
31-Dec-17 30-Sep-17 31.Dec-17
HK$°000 HK$°000 HEK$ 000
1 s cERERRRNETRR Credit risk for non-securitization exposures 747,230 697,188 59,778
2 HErpSTCETEEE Of which STC approach - - .
2a | HPBRSCEEE Of which BSC approach 747,230 697,188 59,778
3 HATIRBEF R Of which IRB approach - - .
4 1HEHEHERE Counterparty credit risk . R R
5 Hrb SA-CCREFE: Of which $A-CCR - B .
Sa | HORITERERERE Of which CEM - - .
6 Hop IMM(CCR)Y BT Of which IMM(CCR) approach - - -
4 HRETIS AT BILARITIEN MR [Equity exposures in banking book under the A . .
e market-based approach
8 [EERRETEIERAE - LTA CIS exposures — LTA - 3 -
9 | HEERE - WBA CIS exposures — MBA N i N
10 ERIR ST RIS EYE — FBA CIS exposures — FBA - - -
11 A7 B Settlement risk - w R
12 |STRARES R R R Securitization exposures in banking books - - -
HOPIRBSEtEE — SRas Of which IRB(S) approach — ratings-based
13 FHiE method B N -
HAIRB(SETEZE ~ EELOW Of which IRB(S) approach — supervisory
14 FiE formula method " - -
15 |  EHSICS)3HE® Of which STC(S) approach - 5 -
16 {THRmME Market risk _ i -
17 HPSTHETEE Of which STM approach - - -
18 | HpIErEE Of which IMM approach - - -
19 SEBRIEEE Operational risk 41,463 40,838 3317
20 | HEBIAREIE Of which BIA approach 41,463 40,838 1,317
21| ESIOHEE Of which STO approach - - -
21a{ HTASARTEDE Of which ASA approach - - R
22 B AR EE Of which AMA approach N/A N/A N/A
SRR PR AR EE (JEETE250%EE  {Amounts below the thresholds for deduction
B lws) ' (subject to 250% RW) - - -
24 |[EETIRBE Capital floor adjustment _ " -
24a |BEIDEBERIIR Deduction to RWA X } -
Hp R aEE T RERNT R Of which portion of regulatory reserve for
ITERESETEREERRES general banking risks and collective
24b HIER 4 provisions which is not included in Tier 2 b B B
Capital
HopFaEEF T EEARA- R Of which portion of cumulative fair value
; v i aing arising from the revaluation of land
24c %igflig%gﬁﬁimﬁﬁb ind bﬁildings which is not included in Tier 168,882 162,317 13,511
2 Capital
25 ekt Total 619,811 575,709 49,584
BifEE Nate:
(1) N/A: FTHEAERESBER (1) N/A: Not applicable in the case of Hong Kong
(2) B\ b2BALIBSCEFE AT IEE S8 (2) The increase noted in the credit risk for non-securitization exposures caleulated ont BSC

approach between the above two periods was mainly the result of 4 higher leve] of money
market placements outstanding in the books of the Bank as at the end of the current

period,
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Disclosure Templates and Tables Under Revised Pillar 3 Disclosure Requirements (Continued)

(iif)y Template LI1: Differences between Accounting and Regulatory Scepes of Consolidation

BE -l ERESE and Mapping of Financial Statement Categories with Regulatory Risk Categories
REGEBEERBREZ
ECE
@ ® @ | @ J @® 1T o 1 @
THEWIRE# Carrying values of jtems:
ERAH | EEE S SHFIHE TRREEH
BERER | WE TR | RERARE | HEREXR | 2850E | 3TEER | EHRIE
HYIREE i REZRSIR R EHE | EESAR R
Carrying Carrying subject to subject to  subject to the| subjectto [nof subject to
values as | values under ] credit risk |[counterparty |securitization| market risk capital
reported in scope of framework | credit risk | framework { framework |reguirements
published | regulatory framework or subfect to
financial [consolidation deduction
statements frem capital
HR20174E12H31H As at 31 December 2017
s Assets HKS$'000 HX$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKSE'000 HES000
IS REMKE#  |Cash and balances
s with banks 834,435 834,435 834,435 - - - -
' Placements with banks
o4 A
E%%%Eﬁ%ﬁm mataring between one 460,343 460,343 460,343 ; ; ; -
and twelve months
Loans and advances to
EERF R RE customers and other 165,572 165,550 165,550 - - - -
ACCOUTHS
. Available-for-sale
Bl vestmonts 17,300 17,300 17,300 - - - -
Investment in
EMBAEZER |obsidiaries - 10 10 - - - -
! Property, plant and
R o BB R exquipment 72,217 72,217 72,217 - - - -
R Investment properties 311,400 311,400 311,400 - - - -
SEulE > Rk Tax recoverable T T | - ) ) X
waE "Total assets 1,861,277  1,861,265] 1,861,265 . . - -
s Lisbilities
B Deposits from customers 1,134,951 1,135,607 - - - A 1135607
. Other liabilities and _
HiRa s provisions 18,703 18,418 - - - - 18,418
AHERRTE S Current tax liabilities 5 - - - R . .
BERIEEE Deferrod tax liabilities 5497 sa01] - - - . 5,497
BHEL Total liabilities 1,159,156| 1,159,522 . - - -1 1,159,522
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Disclosure Templates and Tables Under Revised Pillar 3 Disclosure

Requirements (Continued)

(iv) Template LI2: Main Sources of Differences Between Regulatory

ZIRE{E Y ST TR Exposure Amounts and CarryingValues in Financial Statements
@ (b) © J @ | @
P2LTESEREE Hems subject to:
. HENEER | HRRRIE
e EREERER | SuESE KiEam -
Credit risk Securitization Ccuntf:rparty Market risk
Total credif risk
framework framework framework
framework
W20174E12831H As at 31 December 2017 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'900 HE$'000
s A 0 Fat : Asset cartying value amount
1 %gﬁg%;ﬁ?g under scope of regulatory 1,861,265 1,861,265 ;
WELTL) consolidation (as per template e M
# L)
- A e 50 . Liabilities carrying value
g%g % %g Tg amount under regulatory scope
2 HERELL) of consolidation (as per N i )
~ template L11)
"Total net amount under
£ o5 gt -
3 gfﬁ; G RO T HY regulatory scope of 1,861,265 1,861,265 -
A EE consolidation
4 IEERERIEE Off-balance sheet amounts 25,589 4,326 -
g;f; g gg;ﬁg %g Differences due to different
5 Loy /I wora ey [PUns s oher than those 6,951 6,951 -
g TH already included in row 2
Exposure amounts
6 %gggggg L considered for regulatory 1,893,805 1,872,542 - - -
purposes
v FLIA 20V HEIZH3 I B EsriEE e E R (v) Table LIA: Explanations of Differences Between Accounting and

RBEH M EEER

FERRLIT A (2) 512 BO T L 5 SR B B4
MEEMEASREWITEIZANEZE
BRMUFM BB RN R G
#F - BARRTT ZINE LS ESIRNGE
P S ERAIRE 1479 - BB A ST
WHBSIRESHBERN -

LHZ AREHIR GESERANERE
RRzZ&GEERANTE  FEERABRZ
e BN RREIEN L E - EinEaER
ARAGE - EREEARLCFRFERE
HRAH - FEEGARZGEREMEE
EIETFERELIIZ (D)3 -

FERELIIA () P (o) Pl 8B - HES
HAREKX -

Regnlatory Exposure Amousnts as at 31 December 2617

The amounts in column (a) in Template LI1 are taken from the consolidated
financial statements which have been prepared based on the consolidated
results and financial data of the Bank and its four wholly owned subsidiaries
made up to 31 December 2017. The four subsidiaries of the Bank are listed
in Note 14 of the consolidated financial statements. There are no
subsidiaries which have not been included in the consolidated financial
statements.

The above basis of consolidation for accounting purposes differs from the
basis of consolidation for regulatory purposes, under which only three of the
subsidiaries, namely, Success Land Enterprises Limited, Golden Wisdom
Development Limited and Team Gold Investrent Limited, are included as
subsidiaries in the consolidated Group for regulatory purposes. The
consolidated carrying values under the scope of regulatory consolidation are
inctuded under colurnn (b} in Template 111,

Differences between the amounts in columns (a) and (b) in Template LIT are
not material.
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Z BRI BIETRE -

S EEERTHEMEFRNESEER
EHEBRB BB EEEREERHE -
EMZERENRAEGH ERERLERS
BERHe mHRSRAEMSRZHEE -
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Disclosure Templates and Tables Under Revised Pillar 3 Disclosure

Reguirements {Continued)

™

i)

Table LI1A: Explanations of Differences Between Accounting and
Regulatory Exposure Amounts as at 31 December 2017 (Continued)

The main differences between the carrying values in the consolidated
financial statements and the regulatory exposure amounts are listed in
Template LI2. The difference in the off-balance sheet amounts under
columns (a) and (b) in Template LI2 represents mainly the undrawn
loan commitments which are unconditionally cancellable without prior
notice, and therefore attracts zero risk weighting under credit risk
framework.

The Group does not engage in business that subject itself to
counterparty credit risk framework and securitization framework. In
addtion, the Group has received exemption granted by HKMA for
calculating market risk.

The Group adopts prudent valuation estimates for all its on and off-
balance sheet items. The valuation techniques and methodology adopted
by the Group has been detailed in Note 3.4 of the consolidated financial
statements.

Table CRA: General Information about Credif Risk

The Bank is stringent in accepting credit customers and would only deal
with customers whose background and financial conditions are known
to our management. Tangible securities and/or strong guarantors fo
support credit facilities are insisted. This has given rise to a high quality
credit portfolio with decades of zero loan loss.

The credit approval, review and moniforing fiunctions are delegated by
the Board to Credit Committee. Granting of new credits and renewals of
existing credit are guided by Credit Policy as approved by the Board.
The credit initiation and review process involve the Credit Officer who
is responsible for information gathering, analysis and report preparation.
New credits are subject to prior compliance clearance before the loan or
credit Hmit would be made available to borrowers. Credit risk
management and administration are examined by Internal Auditors once
a year, with results reported to Audit Committee.

Credit Policy is reviewed annually, or more frequently as changes in
regulatory or business environment necessitate a policy change.
Revisions to Policy require concurrence of the Credit Committee and
approval of the Board before taking effect. Policy limits are established
upon referencing the regulatory requirements, market practice and our
own risk tolerance.

Weekly meetings are held among senior management to review the
performance of each existing credit exposure and new credit
applications. Members of Credit Committee meet monthly to examine
the overall portfolio, market trend and compliance-related issues.
Information on connected exposures, as approved by Credit Committee
members who are not connected parties, are provided to Board members
at each Board meeting.

88



(vily HERECRI : FM017TEI2AIHEE (vii)

Disclosure Templates and Tables Under Revised Pillar 3 Disclosure

Requirements (Continued)

Template CR1: Credit Quality of Exposures as at 31 December 2017

EimZAERER
{a) | (b} () @
BUFHEE 2z snn
Cross carrying amounts of
BERENEER] SRR ER R
i Rif S/ EE B
Drefaulfed Non-defaulted Alowances Net valpes
EXposures eXpOSures fimpairments
_F':‘ZGE TEI2B3IH As at 31 December 2017 HK$'080 HK$'000 HK$'080 HK$'000
|1 I : 162,256 162,256
| 2. |mses | Debt securties - : :
. ﬁ@ﬁ{ﬁ?&%a {Off-balapce sheet e :
I 3  jiRE exposures 1 25,589 25,589
| 4 |ms Total 1 187,845 187,845
(a) I (b) () (@
BUPHE Z MRS
Cross carrying amounts of
BEERNERR | JEREERERE
-3 R et/ HE B
Defaulted Non-defauited Allowances Net values
exposures exposures /impairments
201 7ECH30H As at 30 Jane 2017 HKS5'000 HKS$'600 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
1 ERR floans - 155,362| 155,362
2 |lEmEs Debt securities - - .
“ HERBEIE Off-balance sheet
}  |IEiE {exposures - 18,624 1 8,624-1
4 gt Total | . 173,986 173,986
(vili) BIECR?  BESTEERERY (viif) TFemplate CR2: Changes in Defanited Loans and Debt Securities
[4 -
(@)
B
Amount
F2017812H31E As at 31 December 2017 HKS'000
. BRE-EREHr TSR RIERES Defaulted foans and debt securities at end of the
SR previous reporting period -
' . . . Loans and debt securities that have defaulted since
2 %Wﬁ%&ﬂﬁﬁ%@&ﬁﬁﬁ% the last reporting period -
3 lmEmEEEkn Retumed fo pon-defaulted status E
4 |HupREE Amounts written off R
5 |E e Other changes -
6 AR TR SRR S R B E s Defaulted loans and debt securities at end of the
3 current reporting period )
(@)
B
Amount
FR2017EE6F30H As at 30 June 2017 HKS'000
! O -SSR R R R AR S Defaufted loans and debt securities at end of the
sEee previous reporting period - i
' - Loarts and debt securities that have defaulted since
2 %Wﬁi@]ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&%ﬁ%% the last reporting period N

T

Returned to non-defanlted status

4 |meEE Amounts written off -

| 5 BT Cther changes -
' 6 BTSRRI R Defaulted loans and debt securities at end of the

% current reporting period )

MEE: BRA2017HE12H31 3 E2017THE6H30 Note: Qur Bank does not have any defaulted loans and debt securities as at 31

H - RIS REE R T R
CEAB N EEES

December 2017 and 30 June 2017.
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(ix) #RCRB: WRERREERERZBI/MNIE

(x)

ERBREZHEDBEMER - EWEER
{FIBEA - EIRERRRIETEZ L A W
FRERRZ RKIRSRBEREERERE
HEZBERRE - ERFEEEBETUTHE
FEEFR . B R R EE S

- EREEEAMEES:

- MBREASR T SRR RS

- BENEREZMBINE C 78 L
B S TERE-ERTRER
EL T EFE L - R

- EMERTENERBETEMAMEE
-

AR L REE RS L2 BRI R RS R
R B EE ERLERAR -

S BB AR RS T BREERE
REHEMEE T Eh R - 5110 - BRE
HE B /BRI REE -

B EIEH20178E12F31 H E20168E12831H
DA SR, - TR EFGEHO 2 s EeaE
BRUEGOVHEEEZ I L4 - BT
3140 EHEE3.3IA -

201712 B 31 B R20164E 12 31 A S B i
EFERERRRE - BUERREE  BOR
ARG E A AR -

FORC : BRFSBG(E Rl B AR MR AL B R

REER R IUAEMERRE LHESEHEE
AEZ B - B ZERGERE
FREIREEETZZA  NRREHER
REHHMERER - BETEE EHES
REQEHEGDRERE ERBIERRE
B S -

P017TE R AN HERER LR ERE
TEEOMEBBIGMTONTEREERE
2,611,2537C » SR ZWER LHA
R N EEE S B BB EE619,400,0007T
B 819,426,340 » P HEMYREE D
SEyEIEEEEBEE Z75.8%  iEAY
HAERE24.2% - BTEETEBEERERZ
RO REE LSS .

SETEAEEERRRARS N ZRBRE -

Disclosure Templates and Tables Under Revised Pillar 3 Disclosure

Requirements {Continued)

(ix)

x)

90

Table CRB: Additional Disclosure Related to Credit Quality of
Exposures

Exposures are considered by the Group to be past due when
repayments are overdue by 3 months. Impaired exposures are those of
which the discounted future cash flows using the original effective
interest rate are lower than their existing carrying values, Impairment
is considered when there is objective evidence of the happening of
the following events, including, but not limited to:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower;

- default or delinguency in interest or principal payments;

- the Group, for economic or legal reasons relating fo the
borrower's financial difficulty, grants to the borrower a
concession that the Bank would not otherwise consider; or

- it becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganization,

There are no differences between the definitions of past due
exposures and defaulted exposures for accounting purposes and those
for regulatory purposes.

Resturctured exposures are those exposures that the Group has
granted concession in its repayment, such as, a longer repayment
period and/or lower installment amounts, when compared to the
original exposures.

The breakdown of exposures by geographical areas, industry and
residual maturity as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 are
given in Note 3.1.4 (a), Note 3.1.4 (b) and Note 3.3.1 of the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

The Group does not have any impaired exposures, past due
exposures, defaulted exposures nor restructured exposures as at 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2016,

Table CRC: Qualitative Disclosures Related to Credit Risk
Mitigation

The Group accepts first legal property mortgages and listed securities
as collateral for secured loans. Updated valuation of properties under
mortgages are obtained at least annually for credit review purposes or
when changes to the credit facility lines are proposed. Listed
securities pledged to the Group are revalued on a daily basis to ensure
the prudent loan-to-security value ratios have been preserved.

The carrying amounts of loans secured by mortgaged properties and
listed securities amounted to HK$159,447,032 and HK$2,611,253,
while the fair value of these mortgaged properties and shares in listed
companies were HK$619,400,000 and HK$19,426,340 respectively
as at 31 December 2017. Of the total mortgaged properties,
residential properties accounted for 75.8% of the total value of such
properties while commercial properties were 24.2% of total
mortgaged properties. All listed securties pledged to the Group as
loan collaterals were blue-chip Hsted equities.

The Group does not net its on- and off-halance sheet exposures.



Disclosure Templates and Tables Under Revised Pillar 3 Disclosure
Reqguirements {(Continued)

(xi) HERRCR3 : R20174E12 031 BRI RR{EER (xi) Template CR3: Overview of Recognized Credit Risk Mitigation as at 31
BB TS R December 2017
{a) (b1 (b) {d) H
LSETER
DISREHEAR | DISEEIRRSE | $14ET RS
FEoEERR | FINEERR | FRECZRE | REZERE | SEREBY
¥ - RIS = prE 7 B
Exposures | Exposuresto be] Exposures Exposures Exposures
unsecured: secured secured by secured by ssecured by
carrying recognized recognrized recognized
amount collateral guarantees credit
derivative
contracts
B0 T#EI2H 318 As 5t 31 December 2017 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK5'000
2 g | Debt securities : . | -
3 |t Toral 162,256 0 B 4
4 |ghREgs |of which defaulted i 4 ' | -
(a) (b1 (b (@ 4]
BIEEEIfER
BIRE SRR, | ISR | (T TESE
MR ERR| FRERER | EREZER | REZERE | HfEREZ
1 : IRmR i G & ol e ]
Exposures | Exposuresto he{ Exposures Exposures Exposures
unsecured: secured secured by secured by ssecured by
carrying recognized recognized recognized
amount coliateral guarantees eredit
derivative
- e — contraCts
201746 A 30H As at 30 June 2017 HKS'000 HEKS$"000 HK3$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1 |8 Loans 155,362 - - . R
2 HEWES Debt securities - - - 1
3 et . Totat 155362 4 ; - .
4 |HeREs Of which defaulted - i ; : :
FfifEE: Note:
FR2017#E12H31 B B20174E6 B 30 B RT3 4T Qur Bank does not have any exposgures secured by recognized CRM as at 31
HhmTEaR AL iRRrAsRE - 38 December 2017 and 30 June 2017. All secured loans of the Bank are fully
T2 EEENES TS e aEEEEH secured by collaterals other than recognized CRM. The increase noted in
SRR - FOC01TEE12H 3 H Z SE 2017 loans as at 31 December 2017 when compared to 30 June 2017 was mainly
ECHHE NN TE RSB ERTE due to increased outstanding of overdrafts drawn by customets.
Frighn -
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(xil) BURRCRS : 15 P BB AR R o8 e RS

Disclosure Templates and Tables Under Revised Pillar 3 Disclosure Requirements
{Continned}

{xif) Template CR4: Credit Risk Exposures and Effects of Recogpized Credit Risk

ARy B —RSCE Mitigation - for BSC Approach
@ | ® © | @ © 1 o
RIGCCFREEE A RRRR CRFCCRR RIS E RIS ) B iy & B i
FHEEAZBRRE HEEAZBRRE E2Elic
Exposures pre-CCF and pre- | Exposures post-CCF and post-| RWA and RWA density
CRM CRM
RESHR | REANER | REARS | REANE |RERIER| BRITER
e SR PR SR # HEE
On-balance | Off-balance | On-balance | Off-balance RWA RWA density
FR201HEIZE3IH As at 31 December 2017 sheet sheet sheet sheet
R Exposure classes HK$'000
1 =) ﬁ‘gﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ% Sovereign exposures 427,480 - 4274801 “ - 0.00%
2 | /'\ﬁﬁﬁzjﬂﬂ“gjﬁ ' PSE exposures . . ' 4 . - 0.00%
%gﬁﬁﬁﬁnﬂﬁ;ﬁ Multllatcrai dcve]opment bank
} lm exposures 1 B | oo
4 ﬁ{@ﬁfﬁ,ﬁﬁiﬁ?’g IBank cxposurcs 863 218 - 863,2_18 41 172,64_‘_& B _ 20 00%
5 |memn |Cash items 4,080} - 4,080 - - 0.00%
e it Exposur@s in respéét'iﬁf
g‘é%ﬁﬁﬁggﬁu‘% failed delivery on
6 ﬁ‘ﬁ%/;& Fﬁgﬁ?f?{gg transactions entered into on . - . R ) 0.00%
ﬁé o a basis other than a deliver-

] 7T {ETEEER R&Bldential mongage loans 100,161 18,198 100, 161 _ 4_,000 . 100,983 96 95%
8 ]ﬁ{ﬂzfﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁg  |other exposures ' 473277 7,391 473, 277 _ 326 473,603 100.00%
0 HEENEAEAE  (Sigrificant exposures to 0.00%

U MEEiE commercial entities - ) : ) T e
10 [8Est Total 1,868,216] 25,589 1,868,216 4,326 747,230 39.90%

@ [ ___® @ | @ @ | ®
FAGCCF B BG4 P B i | S COF 2 U5 P RS | Bl 2 1 R MR I v o
SRR BRI g Eidrwdi) i HEE
Exposures pre~-CCF and pre- | Exposures post-CCF and post-] RWA and RWA density
CRM CRM
REANR | HEAME | REANE | REAHE |[BRMER| Bmmige |
PeBdE SR ] Je. SMEEE £ HEE
On-balance | Off-balance | On-balance | Off-balance RWA RWA density
201746 H 308 As at 30 June 2017 sheet s?_:_«_e_et__ z_s_heet sheet
pab e kil Exposure classes HK3'000

1 |EHEsERKE  [Sovereign exposures 282,167 . 282,167 - -  0.00%

2 |ABEEEESE  |PSEcxposwes ) . . : ; : 0.00%
3 B ENTTEE  {Multilateral development bank 0.00%

i3 exposures . 7 ) 7 - e

4 URITERER Bank exposures 921,382 1 921,382 - 184,276 ~20.00%

5 PEgEH Cash items 2,965 - 2,965 - - 0.00%

E i {

BUBSRBMBRSE [ s e
WO AT B L ey on

6 i s ,EE‘EE@ BE transactions enfered into on - . i . . 0.00%
% ! a basis other than a deliver-

N versus -payment ‘

T OHEEEBER ) Rwdential mongagc loans 91,832 | __91,832 . 88,037 95.87%

8 |:E1”¢{;§Llfﬁa7%ig ~ |Other exposures 483,185 5,244 483,185( 5,244 487,434 98.80%

o P EENE AR ' Significant exposures to ' o
9 . . - - - - - 0.00%

Bk commercial entities
10 |8st Total 1,781,531 5,244 1,781,531 5,244 759,747 42.52%
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(xii) #RHECR4 * 5 FRBR R & B B F R

#iz #B—BSCRHEZE (H)

FiE:

FR20174E12 B3 B A E RS RS 2 80 -
HoeF R EEHERERBEKKE 2 RITE
EHH - UHESGEAEREPTERETERS
BEEER - PELEERA 2 (FEiFE N
BERBEARRER SRS INERY
PEEYEIEEEER S EET - 52017
H12H31 8 ZEEEREERCEEAEE
MRS EEABLL2017TE A0 B8 2 N EE
FEREESHAESYE 8D - HiRESR
ZEEABRNMBREE BNEAR LER
SRR E BT ARA RN o AR EREN
» HAL BB AR B ARG ERTH
BIGHE, B2 R0 12H3 HIEG
B BRRERE ST ERAHERES -

Disclosure Templates and Tables Under Revised Pillar 3 Disclosure

Reguirements (Continued)

(xif) Template CR4: Credit Risk Exposures and Effects of Recognized

93

Credit Risk Mitigation - for BSC Approach (Continued)

Note ;

The increase in sovereign exposures for 31 December 2017 was
partly matched by the lower level of placements at banks and partly
by increased funding from customers' deposits as at year end.
Residential mortgage loans in the above templates include loans and
overdrafts secured by residential property mortgages, as defined by
the completion instruction of the Capital Adequacy Return. The
increase in these residential mortgage loans on-balance sheet
exposures at 31 December 2017 when compared to 30 June 2017 was
mostly due to increased usage of overdraft lines by customers, while
the increase in off-balance sheet exposure for the same category was
mostly due to increased in overdraft facilities granted to customers.
Decrease in other exposures was noted during the current semi-annual
pericd as a net result of disposal by the Group of its available-for-sale
investments, offset by increase in value of investment properties upon
their revaluation as at 31 Decernber 2017,
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Disclosure Templates and Tables Under Revised Pillar 3 Disclosure

By EE R S RS B 2 SR TR Bl
SHRAERERTIASR I ASA/MEM - 1
WITHIZEE - FEERER T FEARTRAEA
201 T B ICHIE T I BEEER L E
B EER AR 0 - AR ERERER - iR
BT RO TRBBEEYERTHERR - BEHK
B EIFAI0174 12 31 BRI R RE R E T

HARFERIEH -

oo Requirements (Continued)
(xiil) BIRRCRS R ER (xiii) Template CRS: Credit Risk Exposures by Asset Classes and by Risk
S ERBRARE—BSCGRA Weights - for BSC Approach
B01MERB3H As at 31 December 2017 @ & © (@ ® ® ® @ 0
Risk Weight
PURMRIR ik Wele B PRI
(EfSCCFEEE
seqy] EFBM
% 10% 0% 5% 50% 100%| 250% TEH) Total credit
Others A
risk exposures)
amount (post CCF
and post CRM)
[ A Exposure class HKS 000
1 {EHERER R Sovereign exposures 427,480 - - - - - - - 427,480
7 B EERRY | PSE exposures p R ) R . N _ N
3 |BESEHTREKRE  [Multilteral development bank . K R . . N N
4 [T Bank exposures - | ses2is] . - - 863,218
5 PHRETEE Cash items 4,080 - - - - - - 4,080
BESREE R [Exposures in respect of failed
6 BTN B delivery on transactions entered i
{4 SR BB Ao S A into on a basis other than a k N - -
b delivery-versus-payment basis
7 |Ezmmsn " [ Residential mortgage loans . . - 1 eas|  oram - 104,161
8 |EfpmeEs Other exposures - - 326 - 4 AT - - 473,603
o BEEERNIERR Significant exposures to i i i i ) i ] ) )
. commercial entities
10 |east Total 431,560 4 seasa| o east  smiem i R 1,872,542
201746 H30H As at 30 June 2017 (a) O] (©) @ (e} it (g ] 6
Risk Weigh:
FURARR Risk Welght s p R R
(BEECCFRRE
it (BB
0% 10% 20% 35% 50% 100%|  250% FEA) Total credit
Othersi
risk expnsures
amount (post CCF,
and post CRM)]
BT B Exposure class HKS 000
1 B RER R Sovereign exposures 252,167 - - - - 282,167
2 ABREAEERE PSE exposures - - _
1 | BB sEETRER Muliilateral development bank _ . i N
4 |$E{TRBEFIE Bank exposures - - 971,382 - - - 921,382
5 Beme Cash items 2,965 - " “ - - " . 2,965
BLE SRR LS Etposures in respeet of failed
6 R ELBITRIR B delivery on fransactions entered ) B N i } ) i i )
{ B P AR R iato on 2 basis other than a
i delivery-versus-payment basis
7 Mrsikig e Residential mortgage loans - 7,590 84,242 - - 91,832
8 (MR Other exposures - 1,244 - - 487,185 - - 488,429
3 SR ERRE R Significant exposures to i ) ) ) )
|5§?§iﬁ commercial eptities i
i0 I&%ﬁ Total 285,132 - 922,626 - 7,599! 571,427 - - 1,786,775
Bk onrTEDRHN B e N EREE S B BhEE Noie: The increase in sovereign exposures for 31 December 2017 was partly matched by the lower

level of placements at banks and partly by increased funding from customers' deposits as at year
end. The increase in residential mortgage loans at 31 December 2017 when compared to 30 June
2017 was mostly doe to increased usage of overdrafi lines by customers. Decrease in other
exposures was noted during the current semi-annual period as a net result of disposal by the
Group of its available-for-sale investments, offset by increase in value of investment properties
upon their revaluation as at 31 December 2017,
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Disclosure Templates and Tables Under Revised Pillar 3 Disclosure
Requirements (Continued)

(xiv) HEth#ERR (xiv) Other Templates

RITH2017TE12AN B2 FEARL EBE
FRTETIER S, BHMEXZHEESE
X5, MEMENRR-—FBHEZERS,
&1kt 3 R FI 8 B 3 45 A RS R a8 25 ME 58
AR AN 2 IR TR, RF IR TR MRANAR
ATHEE, HIITREETERER.

The Bank does not engage in any derivative transactions, securities
financing transactions or securitization transactions as at and during
the year ended 31 December 2017 nor has plan to engage in such
transactions in the coming year, and has therefore not included any
disclosure templates on counterparty credit risk and securitization
exposures, which are considered not to be relevant and would carry nil
balances on such templates if published.

RTERRHETSRRMEERE, KEL
B R TS H 5 RER B ER.

The Bank has been exempted from the calculation of risk weighted
assets for market risk and accordingly has been exempted from
disclosing templates on market risk.

12 BREE EREEN

SEZEREEEFHEZRETECESRICESR
B, ZFHZACESREERTEPLIEZERRE
ma&Al. EERFEHEEE Y@ RZHER

THEEREBERNBRBITEEBRRER.

Qualitative Information on Management of Risk

The Group's risk management function rests with directors and managers
designated by the Board. They act as the focal point in identifying,
reviewing and quantifying the particular risk areas the Group is exposed to,
and in recommending to the Board and the subsequent implementation of
appropriate policies and procedures.

() EEREZERE (a) Credit risk management

EERRARNEFREAEEMBRENEE
IR RBIT XML FREEME R Z AR
M2, KEERTHBERFMRMAUERE RIZ
HENEFRITEEN AR, EXEEE
ZHEEREETRE, WERERERE
PEEERERERTIREERREEGZ
BRER,

SEZBRAREKEEARELESRUN
REFPETRS, EXRFIREFRHZE
BTt 2 ERERE R T, RITEHRTE
REl & R AR R R ZEEHRGRREE
EEZREE, RREEDERAEEEER
HEAERM N, EREHNRIEREERER
HENRE, ERUZEFEEREEEZ
BE BT HP R, KEBEEFEERE
BEHEF LT ERRETHED,

R A -
RBEERBREEREEARRNEENS
BREACRERELTHEES, BMLE
ERERNFHIEERE. EEIMER
HHERRBEEERMAE ZBERRIEEIMT
ZYEHE, ROZ—ERRERERDES
15 2 BN EE SR RERE (R B AR e RFh R B
BRI th B 1T H £ A &I,

(@) REERZEH

) 2= [\ 7 SR B R 7| =R 2 AT RE R BT 5| B
BzER, KREzAZRRHESHREEBE
7, HEEDZAEEREFNEECZERE
EXRMEBEH 2 KFERIELHE,

Credit risk is the potential risk of financial loss resulting from the
failure of a customer to settle its financial and contractual obligations
as and when they fall due. The Group has established policies and
systems for the monitoring and control of exposures to individual
customers and industry segments. Lending limits are delegated to
members of the Credit Committee who has the authority in approving
and regularly reviewing the credits, and assessing on a periodic basis
the overall quality of the Group's loan portfolio.

It is the Group's policy to deal only with customers whose background
and financial strength are thoroughly known to management. Loan
applications are individually assessed based on information backed up
by documentary evidence. While flexibility is provided in structuring
the credit terms to meet the applicant's specific needs, applicant's
financial strength, repayment ability and adequacy of asset protection
are insisted before credits are considered. The credit approval process
is centralised and under tight control of the Credit Committee, whose
approval is required for management to engage in new products and
activities.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk arises from the mismatch in the cash flows emanating
from on-balance sheet assets and liabilities, plus the settlement
characteristic of off-balance sheet activities. The Group's funding
activities are closely managed by the directors in accordance with
policies and guidelines established by the Board. The wusual
conservative strategy and the availability of up-to-date reporting on
liquidity position ensure that all obligations of the Group are met in a
timely and cost efficient manner.

Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk is the risk of loss to the Group due to possible
changes in the level of interest rates. Interest rate risk of the Group is
monitored by ALCO and senior management through their review and
control of the Group's level and type of interest earning assets and
interest bearing liabilities.
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Qualitative Information on Management of Risk {Continued)
{¢) Interest rate risk management (Continued)

(i) Interest rate exposures in banking book

The Group is exposed to the following interest rate risks in relation to its

banking book :

- Repricing (or maturity mismatch) risk : the risk is caused by timing
differences in rate changes and cash flows that occur in the repricing
and maturity of fixed and floating rate assets, labilities and off-
balance-sheet instruments.

- Yield curve risk : repricing mismatches, coupled with unanticipated
changes in the yield curve, will have adverse effects on the Bank’s
income of economic value.

- Basis risk : the risk arises from imperfect correlation between
changes in the rates earned and paid on different instruments with
otherwise similar repricing characteristics.

In the measurement of such interest rate risk, the Group assumes that
loans are repaid according to lean instalments while deposits without a
fixed maturity are continued into the foreseeable future. For all products,
the earliest repricing date is used to determine the impact of the risk on
the Group.

Sensitivity analysis in relation to the impact of changes in interest rates
on earnings and economic value is assessed through a hypothetical
interest rate shock of 200 basis points across the yield curve on both sides
of the balance sheet and is performed on monthly basis. Sensitivity limits
are set to control the Group's interest rate risk exposure under both
eamnings and economic value perspectives.

The Group uses sensitivity analysis to measure the potential effect of
changes in interest rates on the net interest income and economic value
change which is broken down by currencies in accordance with the
method used in the monetary refurns relating to interest rate risk
exposures submitted to the HKMA as at 31 December are as follows:

a%
Currency
o e Lk
HK Dollars  US Dollars Total

HK$ HKS HKS
2017
Interest rate risk shock
{(+200 basis points)
- Impact on economic value 1,510,303 1,576 1,511,879
- Impact on earnings (1,973,095) 8,228  (1,964,867)
2016
Interest rate risk shock
{+200 basis points)
- Impact on economic value 1,196,961 2,569 1,199,530
- Impact on earnings (4,834,904) 13,534 (4,821,370)

(¢} Foreign exchange risk mapagement

Foreign exchange risk represents the potential risk of financial loss resulting
from the fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, The Group's non trading
exposure to foreign exchange risk is not material as a result of conservative
strategy adopted In all cases, foreign exchange risk is closely monitored by
senior management of the Group.
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Qualitative Information on Management of Risk (Continued)

(e} Market risk manasement

Market risk recognises the potential change in earnings as a result
of movement in interest rates, asset price, foreign exchange rates
and the level of concentration and volatility in any or all of these
markets. The Group considers its involvement In market risk-
related treasury activities has not been significant. This is in
accordance with the Group's de minimis exemption status as
determined by the exemption criteria set out under the Banking
{Capital) Rules.

Disclosure on Remuneration for CG-5 Guideline on a Sound
Remuneration System Issned by the HKMA

The Bank establishes a Remuneration Policy which governs the set up
of a Remuneration Committee and formulates the principles of
remuneration determination for its staff. The Remuneration Policy of the
Bank promotes an overall scheme of remuneration that matches the
Bank's business objectives, risk tolerance and risk management
framework.

The composition and responsibility of the Group's Remuneration
Committee has been set out in note & of the Supplementary Financial
Information. During its annual meeting held in the year ended 31
December 2017, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and approved
the annual remuneration to be paid to the Bank's senior management
(being those holding position as Assistant General Manager or above)
and key personnel (being heads of key functions as stipulated in
Fourteenth Schedule of the Banking Ordinance) in accordance to the
Bank's Remuneration Policy and Board instructions. It also approved
the annual review of the Bank's Remuneration Policy where no changes
were recommended to be made. The basis of determining the annual
emolument adjustment payable by the Bank o its senior management
and key personnel is by reference to Board approved benchmark based
on public sector indicators in this area. Accordingly, employees who are
responsible for risk control functions are remunerated independently of
the businesses they oversee. No individual director of the Bank will be
involved in decisions relating to histher own remuneration.

The total fees paid to the members of Remuneration Committee during
the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to HK$296,000 (2016:
HK$288,000) which were paid for their overall workloads and
commitment to the Board as a whole,

The Group only provides fixed remuneration to its senior management
and key persomnel in the form of salary and allowance in cash. No
variable remuneration, whether in the form of cash, shares and share-
linked instruments and other instruments, has been provided by the
Group to its semior management and key personnel. The total
remuneration for the Group's senlor management (3 persons in total) and
key personnel (4 persons in total} for the year ended 31 December 2017
amounted to HK$3,982,440 and HK$3,272,370 respectively (2016:
HK$3,847,200 and HKS$3,146,760 respectively). There were no
deferred remuneration nor retained remuneration, whether vested or
unvested, awarded, in the form of payment or reduction through
performance adjustments, to the Group's senior management and key
personnel during the year ended 31 Decemmber 2017 (2016: Nil).
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Disclosure on Remuneration for CG-5 Guideline on a Sound
Remuneration Svstem Issued by the HKMA (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any
new sign-ons, severance payments or guaranteed bonuses awarded to its
senior management and key personnel (20¢16: Nil).

The Bank has complied with the requirement set out in Part 3
(disclosure on remuneration) of the Supervisory Policy Manual CG-5
entitled “ Guideline on a Sound Renmwmneration System™ issued by the
Hong Kong Monetary Authority in all material aspects.

Disclosure an Fair Value Practices on Financial Instruments for CA-
8-10 Guideline issued by the HKMA

The Group holds available-for-sale listed equity investments which are
subject to fair value measurement as stipulated in the CA-S-10
Guideline issued by the HKMA. The valuation technique used by the
Group to value the subject available-for-sale listed equity investments
has been set out in note 3.4 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements while the sensitivity analysis of such imvestments are
detailed in note 3.2.1 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements,

The Group uses prices quoted at the stock exchanges for each of the
available-for-sale listed equity investments to mark the investments to
their fair values on periodic basis. The fair value measurement and
calculation process is performed by a department independent of the risk
taking wnit and is subject to siringent controls supervised by senior
management of the Group. The fair values of the available-for-sale listed
equity investments are reviewed regularly by senior management and the
Board.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF TAI SANG BANK LIMITED
( Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited Hability )

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Tal Sang Bank Limited (the “Bank™) and #s subsidiaries (the “Group™) set out on pages 6 to 60,
which comprise;
- the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 Decernber 2017,

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the vear then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs™) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs™) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Respensibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’®s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code™), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code,

Other Information
The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information included in the

Annual Report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors

either intend to Hquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so0.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF TAI SANG BANK LIMITED (CONTINUED)
{ Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited Hability )

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consclidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’ s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept Hability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or crror and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial staterments,

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout

the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

- Conelude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a materfal uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’ s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our suditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern,

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statemenis represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS
Certified Pubhlic Accountants

HONG KONG, 19 March 2018
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